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Thursday, June 5, 2008

MR. PRATT: Good afternoon everybody. |1 want to
thank everybody for taking the time out this afternoon to
join us for this afternoon®s hearing. It"s important that
all of us come together as a community and to have this
important conversation. Again, you know, there are a lot of
partners and groups involved in this effort, and we"re proud
to work with all of them. My name is Doug Pratt. 1°m the
communications director for the Michigan Education
Association, one of the groups sponsoring these hearings.
I"m going to introduce our panelists here today who are here
to take in the testimony and ask questions of those of you
who are going to come down here to speak. From Ingham ISD
we have Stan Kogut, the superintendent; the president of the
Michigan Education Association, Iris Salters; president of
Michigan®s Charter Schools, Dan Quisenberry; from the Kent
ISD near Grand Rapids, Ron Koehler; and at the end, Jack
Kresnak of the Michigan®s Children.

At this point I"m going to kick it over to
President Salters to make some introductory remarks. 1711
come back and we"lIl talk logistics a little bit, and then
we" 1l get started. Madam President?

MS. SALTERS: Thank you, Doug. Thank you for
taking this time out of your busy schedules to join us here

today to talk about a crisis that has a direct impact on
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each and every one of us. You may have heard that about
20,000 students drop out of schools in Michigan each year.
The impact of this crisis is huge, including lower incomes
for dropouts, local communities with fewer well-paid
employees to support the local businesses, and an economy
saddled with the perception that we lack qualified employees
for prospective jobs. It also costs taxpayers about
$127,000 per dropout in lost tax revenues and increased
public health, crime and welfare demands. The numbers of
our youths who are leaving school without a diploma and
their impact on our state is staggering.

We are here today to act, because one dropout is
too many. The dropout crisis is certainly a complicated
problem. No one strategy or reform model will work for all
schools or for all students. But we shouldn®t back down
from trying to fix the problem or delay In acting because it
seems too hard to solve. That"s why all of us as partners
in this effort want to hear your stories why students drop
out, what impacts that has on our community, why students
return to school, what works and, frankly, what doesn"t
work. We will present -- you will present your stories and
the findings of these hearings -- we will present your
stories and the findings of these hearing to political
leaders and the public at the Michigan Dropout Prevention

Leadership Summit on October 20th in Lansing. The
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information we gather through these hearings will inform our
leaders about how to develop the broad-based solutions
necessary to graduate more students from high school who are
ready to work, move on to college or other training and be
an active participant In our economy and society. Thank
you. I will turn it back to Doug for you to take the
microphone.

MR. PRATT: Thank you. 1 just want to again thank
all of the sponsors -- 1"m going to whiz through them here
real quick -- of the Dropouts: One is Too Many series of
hearings. MEA, MAISA, which is the Michigan Association of
Intermediate School Administrators. Yes. |1 will get that
by the end of these ten hearings. Kent ISD, Michigan®s
Children, Michigan®s Charter Schools, Michigan®s Promise,
and Michigan®s Future. So thank you again to all of those
sponsors.

What we"re going to do now is launch into the
testimony phase of the hearing. As you came in, many of you
filled out speaker cards. |If you haven®t filled one out and
would like to, raise your hand and we"ll make sure we get a
card to you so you can come up and testify. 1711 call you
up to the microphone. We are recording all this, so
please -- it"s a small room, so it feels iIntimate. But iIt"s
important that you speak clearly into the microphones so

that we can record this to provide it to the legislature and
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the public in the fall.
We are keeping testimony to a five-minute limit.
Neeley over there in the corner has a sign that

says ""One minute warning” and "Time"s up,' so just keep an
eye out over there. And we ask that you please keep to the
five-minute time limit. When you®"re done, our panelists may
have a question or two for you to get some more information
for the record, and then we will move on. If you have any
written materials, written commentary, anything like that,
I"m sitting down here in the corner. [1"11 be happy to take
that from you.

And 1 think once we"ve had a chance to hear from
everybody, the panelists are going to have a bit of an
interchange about what they“ve heard today. And we will —-
some of our panelists may have to duck out a little bit
early, but we will stay and record testimony until everybody
who"s had a chance -- who wants to speak has had a chance
to.

So if there are any other questions or anything?
Seeing none, first up I"m actually going to ask Stan Kogut
to testify. Aside from being the superintendent of Ingham
ISD, Stan"s got a personal story about this that he"d like
to share. So we"re going to start out with Stan and we"ll

go from there.
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MR. KOGUT: Thank you very much. You know, this
issue of dropouts is an endemic issue and it
impacts a lot of people. And it"s often I think sometimes
we hear that it looks like because i1t"s social, lower
socioeconomic, or the parents aren”"t helping, and there®s a
lot of issues, and they can, you know, put blame on it.

And, you know, that"s not always the case. And 1 guess I
want to tell you a personal story.

My wife was a Merit Scholar in college, and 1
certainly made it through college myself. We had a son that
really wasn®t successful. By the time it was his sophomore
year, our school started turning him off. His junior year
we put him in alternative ed at his high school. That still
did not work. They were not meeting the needs of this
child. And 1 tell you, | used to go to every one of his
parent®s conferences. 1°d sit there, take copious notes,
come back and be on top of him constantly. And, you know,
it was amazing. He would do the work, never turn it in, you
know. So 1°d see the work was done, but it wasn"t turned
in. And, of course, sometimes school said, "Well, he didn"t
turn it in on time, so it doesn™t count."

My son dropped out of school sometime in late
towards junior year. We didn®t find this out right away
until we started getting some calls from school. And he
didn"t graduate. It took us awhile. And what we did is we

got him enrolled in a correspondence course, American



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Schools, kept on top of him constantly. That meant not
doing anything, no car, nothing at all, until he did his
work. And eventually he was successful. He did get his
degree from American Schools, and that"s worked out well for
him. He went to college for one year, but that didn"t
really make it for him either. So he"s 25 right now, and
next year he"s enrolled at Eastern Michigan where hopefully
he®I1l1 go back.

I once heard that it takes 25 years to grow an
18-year-old man, and I think there"s a lot of truth to that
in our society today. So there are a lot of challenges out
there. And there®s just such a differentiation in the
learning that all of our kids need. And we really have a
challenge today when the kids are dealing with MTV and ipods
and every kind of mechanical device out there and they"re
instantaneous and quick, and then they go and listen to what
same thing 1 saw 30, 40 years ago when I was in school.

So we have some challenges. Some of it"s from our
side as educators, and some of us it"s just understanding
the systems and providing systems that work for kids. We
have to be able to provide a continuum of services for kids,
not just one size fits all. And here in Ingham County we
are working with putting together a program for online
learning so kids can get their high school diploma. We have

some great programs. 1 see Greg Shook here from Meridian
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High, which is an alternative ed program in Haslett. So we
need continuous services, and that®"s what we need to help
support, because these are not cheap. At Ingham ISD we did
a study, and alternative ed programs like one that LCC is
running costs anywhere from 12,- to 13,- to 14,000 per Kid.
It is not sufficient the dollars we have today that make
those kids available, because there®s a lot more support, a
lot more wraparound services are necessary for some Kids.
And we"ve got to figure out how to help those kids. Thank
you.

MR. PRATT: Any questions for Stan from the other
four panelists? Okay. First up in terms of our speaker
cards here, we have Sandy Maxson.

MS. MAXSON: Hello. My name is Sandy Maxson. |1
am the principal of the DiVinci Institute in Jackson, a
charter school. It is a K-12 charter school. We have been
in business for 13 years, so I know a lot about my kids and
I know a lot about my students. So I have a lot to say, but
I know you"re only going to listen for five minutes.

So I want to show you the kids that 1 want to talk
about today. The one on your left is Kevin, and then Nikay
(phonetic), and then Julia. Kevin is a very productive and
responsible student already. He went to our career center
and he has a job. He"s doing a co-op at Motorquest, and

he®"s a mechanic and he"s very successful. He did not take
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Algebra 11, but he"s very productive and we"re very proud of

him. He lives with his grandparents.

And the one on the right is Julia. We are on the

campus of Jackson Community Col

lege, so we have a wonderful

opportunity. Julia has over it"s either 18 or 19 college

credits, and she"s going to be

graduating in a week also.

She did take Algebra 11, and we"re very proud of her.

Nikay is also -- all three of these students are

17. And Nikay has no college -- or excuse me -- no high

school credits. No high school

credits. She"s been with

our school for about a year, and she"s one of the reasons

that we do not make AYP. And 1

don®"t want to tell Nikay to

give up and not to come back to school in the fall because

she will never get a diploma.

school diploma. Part of that i

She will never get a high

S because of the new high

school requirements, and that concerns me. She can be

productive. 1 can help her be

chance. She"s only 17 and she

The next thing I have is a copy of our diploma and

productive. She needs a

needs a chance.

a copy of my teaching certificate. They could look very

similar. And one of the things that 1"m really interested

in is a differentiated diploma.

word "‘diploma™ away from Nikay.

with me today, but she knows 1*

diploma says -- or excuse me.

I do not want to take the
She didn"t want to come
m speaking about her. My

My teaching certificate says,

10
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"RX" and "CX.' That doesn®"t mean a lot to you, but on the
back of my certificate my RX stands for my math endorsement,
my math major, and my CX stands for social studies. That
means 1°m certified In those areas. And I think that we
could have a diploma the same way; that we could have a
differentiated diploma very easily.

The new MME requires all of our students to take
work keys. This is amazing. Work keys is applied math,
applied reading, all those things. And the work keys
materials are all differentiated for levels. So, for
example, electrician apprentice you need a math level of
seven, you need a reading level of six, et cetera. And our
diploma could say a level of five in math, a level of four
in reading or whatever so that we know what they“re capable
of. And then 1 don"t have to say to Nikay, "There"s no
reason to come to school. There"s no reason to come to
school . ™

The other thing 1"m really concerned about is that
AYP is affected so much by dropouts. We have a student that
came to our high school in the ninth grade who"s had truancy
issues for eight years. They came to DiVinci in the ninth
grade and they still have truancy issues. And they“ve
dropped out of school, and now I don®t make AYP. 1 don"t
have a lot of control over that student. 1 do have a lot of

control over students that come up In my system or stay with
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me longer. The longer they"re with me, the more control 1
have about their choices and the more 1 get to know them,
the more that 1 can help them. I"m never going to make AYP.
We"re a real small school. We"re a choice school. And I
don"t want to say to a 17-year-old who comes in, "You might
as well give up. You"re not going to get a diploma.” 1
can"t say that. But 1"m a choice school, and that"s what
happens.

We have a lot of students that are not doing well
in school, and they come to us as a choice. And we want to
give them the option and help them get a diploma and not say
to them, you might as well give up. Thank you.

MR. KOGUT: Sandy, 1 thought it was real
interesting what you were talking about, the career
readiness work keys. And | think you know that MDE is
talking about moving to adding locating information so that
the next year in the MME there will be all three of the work
keys, reading, math and locating information. Then all of
our kids would be eligible for a national career readiness
certificate. And I agree with you. So if our employers say
that, if they score well enough on those gold, silver or
bronze certificates, if that"s enough to make employability,
why can®"t they be successful in other ways? So I think
that"s a great point you"re raising.

MS. MAXSON: The word "diploma"™ is real important
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to our kids also.

MR. QUISENBERRY: Sandy, thank you. You are
articulate and clear, and you offered some solutions. So
just to recognize you did that very effectively, thank you.
We were taking notes.

MS. MAXSON: Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Thank you. Next up we have from
Michigan Virtual University Scott Vashaw, Robert Currie, and
a former student, Kim Babcock.

MR. VASHAW: Thank you, Doug, and thank you
panelists and to the MEA and the other sponsors of these
important hearings. My name is Scott Vashaw. 1"m the
associate director of the Michigan Virtual School. Standing
behind me, Robert Currie and Kim Babcock, a former student.

Before 1 introduce them, let me tell you a little
bit about the Virtual School. We are eight years old. We
are a 501(c)(3) corporation nonprofit. And our charge is to
serve schools and students in Michigan with online
opportunities. This year we will do so for 11,000 students
here in Michigan. Nearly every one of our courses contains
a teacher who helps direct and guide the students through
that online experience. Every one of those teachers is a
highly qualified Michigan certified teacher. Most teach
face-to-face full time here in Michigan, while others are

former Michigan teachers who have retired and are living in
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different states around the country.

We serve primarily students at two ends of the
spectrum; many students at what 1 would describe as the
upper end, advanced placement courses, world language
courses. But increasingly we are called upon to service
students who are at risk, who have dropped out, are looking
for a credit recovery opportunity. Bob Currie is going to
speak a little bit about some of those specific problems
that we work with in the credit recovery area. Bob?

MR. CURRIE: Thanks, Scott. Thank you panel for
this opportunity. Before 1 came to Michigan Virtual School
I was a superintendent and a principal primarily in the
Marshall School District for many years. And one of the
programs that was started about five years ago was an
alternative program, an alternative high school program, not
without some controversy amongst community members and

board.

And just before 1 came over here today, | received

some information that in the five years since that program

began, over 100 students have now graduated from that

program. Marshall High School has about 200 students in

each of their grades, so that"s a significant impact, and it

shows that there iIs a need for alternative opportunities.
Michigan Virtual School provides those

opportunities. And one of the -- we have two programs that

14
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1"d like to highlight today just for a moment. One is in
Dearborn, the Dearborn Virtual Academy. And that program
has been in operation now for several years and serves
literally hundreds of students every year from the three
major high schools in Dearborn and assists those students in
getting on track, staying on track, and moving forward. And
Michigan Virtual High School courses are an integral part of
that program as each student takes two courses from the
Virtual School each semester while they are in the Dearborn
program.

Another program that we"ve begun working with
quite significantly is in Jackson, and that is at the
Tomlinson School, which is the high school alternative
program in Jackson, and also at the Amy Firth Middle School,
which 1s a middle school program that really is designed
more to intervene and prevent rather than try to get
students back on track at the high school level.

The final thing that | would say that we find in
working with literally thousands of students across the
state is many students are looking for alternatives and
opportunities to work at their pace, be in control of their
education environment, and maybe not -- maybe all of them
don®"t fit into the structure of our school systems the way

they are.

What 1 would like to do now is turn it over to Kim

15
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Babcock. Kim was a former student with Michigan Virtual,
and she has an interesting story.

MS. BABCOCK: Hello. When I was 16, I gave birth
to my daughter, and | was ready to drop out. 1 didn"t see
any way that 1 could handle working full time to support my
daughter, --

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Could you speak into the

MS. BABCOCK: -- to spend more time with my
daughter and also go to school full time. My guidance
counselor at Charlotte told me about Michigan Virtual High
School, and showed me the different variety of programs that
they offered. And I completed my junior and senior year
completely through the Michigan Virtual High School. |
fulfilled the rest of my requirements that 1 needed. |1
ended up graduating on time with my class with honors and
with a 3.8 grade point average. And it has enabled me to
become what | have today in the position that | have. And I
would not have been able to get here if | hadn"t had this
opportunity to use the virtual high school.

When 1 was there I was able to fulfill my
requirements for math. 1 took geometry and I took algebra.
And through the history and the social studies course, 1 was
able to take ancient civilizations and world history.

Through English course | was able to take American
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literature and 1 was able to -- it gave me so many options
for what I could do to fulfill the rest of my graduation
requirements that 1 didn"t have to go back to school and 1
was able to balance everything and still graduate.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What are you doing now?

MS. BABCOCK: I work for MIOSHA right now, for the
state. [I"m a secretary.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Very good.

MS. BABCOCK: And 1°ve been there for five years.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That"s great.

MR. QUISENBERRY: Kim, thank you for sharing
and coming today. Describe briefly what the interaction
was, if there was any, with Charlotte or with the I1SD. Or
were you completely involved in the Michigan Virtual
University program? Does that make sense? Did you have
interaction with the school district while you were taking
those classes?

MS. BABCOCK: Yes, 1 did. |1 actually did take one
class my junior year and one class my senior year at the
school. And they were completely supportive of me going
through the Virtual High School so I could complete my
requirements.

MS. SALTERS: Scott, this may be a question for
you. I"m not sure. As you see the whole idea of Virtual

High School in the structure of Michigan schools, how would

17
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you place that within all high schools and still keep the
rigor that the additional requirements have brought on the
scene?

MR. VASHAW: Well, 1T I could look into a crystal
ball and look to the future, 1 see the future of online
education morphing more into a blended approach where
there®s a continuum of opportunities from the type of
experience that Kim had where she had obligations outside of
the school building that required her to be at home and have
flexible opportunities to finish her course work to some of
the things that are occurring today with the seat wailver
that MDE has and Mike Flanagan have engineered which allows
some of the rich and compelling assets that are available
online to be brought into the classroom delivered by local
teachers, supporting local teacher efforts. And so I think
in 1ts infancy online learning was maybe one type or pattern
or model or another. And I see it offering In the future a
broader continuum of services.

MR. KOEHLER: Scott and Bob, a Harvard business
professor, Clay Christensen just wrote a book called
Disrupting Class where he contends in some 15 years 50
percent of learning will be online; that this iIs the
disruptive innovation that will truly change schools. Have
you found during your experience with the Michigan Virtual

that some students actually connect better iIn this manner in
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terms of learning than in a traditional classroom?

MS. BABCOCK: May 1 take this one?

MR. VASHAW: Yeah. Kim wants to answer that.

MS. BABCOCK: I actually forgot to mention this.
When 1 was in traditional school, school came easily to me.
I didn"t need to participate. | never paid attention in
class. 1 turned in my homework and I passed. And then when
I participated in Michigan Virtual High School, because
you"re not face-to-face with the teacher, they require
responses. There"s a certain amount of required responses
to different discussions that you have to give to pass each
class. And I had to know what was going on. |1 had to pay
attention. 1 had to read other students® responses. And it
required a lot more participation, because | was never
required to participate in traditional school.

MR. KOEHLER: And not only did it require more
participation, but was it more engaging for you?

MS. BABCOCK: Yes, it was. Because 1 could -- 1
had to choose how much work 1 had to put into it. And when
you"re required to participate, you pay more attention
because you have to be able to give a response that"s going
to pass. And it required -- when you"re required to
participate, you are required to engage more to know what 1is
actually going on.

MR. KOEHLER: So do you think this will be a
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valuable opportunity for all students?

MS. BABCOCK:

I think that it would be, because a

lot of people get away with not paying attention in class.

One person in the classroom knows every -- all the answers,

and they get called on every time. When you"re required to

participate, you will actually come out of the discussion

knowing a lot more than if you just talked through the

entire class.

MR. KOEHLER:

MR. CURRIE:

Thank you.

Ron, if 1 could just make a comment,

one of the things that are our 100-plus instructors tell us

quite frequently is that in the online courses they develop

relationships and dialogues with students that they

sometimes are unable to do in the regular classroom because

so much that occurs in the online environment can be a

one-on-one discussion or,

as Kim said, they also push

students to all respond to a question as opposed to

sometimes in a traditional setting we all have seen two or

three students maybe respond and others we don"t really know

as the instructor what they®re thinking, what their response

would be. So when we talk about that relationship piece of

the relevance, rigor and relationships, contrary to what 1

think some people visualize in online learning, the

relationship piece is there, and that"s a significant piece

for connecting students.

Thank you.

20
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MR. PRATT: Okay. Before we keep going, we"ve got
competing interests here. 1It"s a bit warm in the room, so
we brought the fans in. The fans make it a little harder to
hear. So we"re trying to crank up the sound system. But if
you can try to speak directly into the microphones so that
everybody can hear, if there®"s folks iIn the back who are
having trouble hearing, please feel free to come on down
front. There"s plenty of seats available here still. 1°d
ask panelists the same thing. Try to project and make sure
to get right up into the microphones so that we can make
sure we not only record but that everybody in the room can
hear. All right?

Next up we have Kevin Epling. Come on down. And
I think it also helps if since this is kind of a well if you
point out that way a little bit. People can hear a little
better. So thank you.

MR. EPLING: Good afternoon.

MS. SALTERS: Good afternoon.

MR. EPLING: Can you hear me in the back? '"No"?
Is this better? Okay. President Salters and panel, 1°d
like to say thank you very much for holding these hearings.
I know it"s time out of your schedule to travel around, but
this 1s an important issue. And for myself and as you"ll
probably find out, there®s going to be a lot of pieces to

this big puzzle that you"re going to uncover.
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One of the pieces that 1°ve been involved with
over the past five years is the issue of bullying in our
schools. Bullying kind of leads to dropout rates, it leads
to truancy, it leads to substance abuse. It is just one of
those things | think for some time we have let go far too
long that it is not an important issue. Schools have been
doing tremendous work on it. | think they need to do a
little bit more. For the past five years I"ve been involved
with the Michigan Safe Schools Initiative, which is a really
dedicated group of law enforcement, educators, policy
makers, who have really come together to talk about the
safety of all of our students.

President Salters, you talked about 20,000
students drop out here in Michigan. Across the United
States we have 160,000 students who don"t go to school
because of the environment that they“"re put into. | get
e-mails from parents whose children don®t want to go to
school because of the environment; that is, what they"re
being exposed to; that eventually their choices really are
three; you switch schools, you home school, or you drop out,
because that issue iIs not being addressed. And I think when
you look at a lot of things across the spectrum and you talk
about school violence and school shootings, dropout rates,
they have this common foundation and it does boil right back

down to bullying in our schools. And 1 think that is an



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

issue that when you look across you®ll probably have to
focus on.

I did some quick research, and 1 know that New
Hampshire, they did a very similar study in 2003. And one
of their top -- 1 think number four -- was bullying caused
students to drop out. And one of their top four
recommendations was anti-bullying curriculum within their
schools. Currently we are iIn the process of we have Matt"s
Safe School Law, which 1 have been a proponent of in the
honor of my son who passed away in 2002, to push this
forward to really help our schools look at this issue. And
if we can improve the environment of our schools with
anti-bullying, it"s going to have a tremendous effect on our
dropout rates and keeping our students in a safe, productive
environment.

So 1 think these are a great forum, and 1 just
wanted to come down and say thank you for holding these.
And I think that"s just one of the key issues that we all

need to be looking at.

MS. SALTERS: Can you talk a little bit about how

you see the larger community playing into the whole

environment of schools?

MR. EPLING: Certainly. From day one, you know,

I1"ve spent a lot of time trying to look forward, not looking

back on all the things that went wrong, you know, in my
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son"s case. But looking forward is to say, "What can we do
better for the next person?'” And I have always taken the
stance that this has to be a community approach. This is a
community approach. You have to get key players to the
table. In our particular incidence, my son was a victim of
a high school hazing on the last day of school. 1 brought
together a team of police, school, parents and park and rec
to say, "You know what? Next year we"re not going to do
this."

And over the last couple years we have really
reduced high school hazing down to zero. Because everyone
is onboard and this is behavior that will just not be
tolerated within our communities and within our schools.

And I think it"s not so much the assault on my son, but it
was the undercurrent that this attitude of violence i1s okay
and that 1t"s tolerated, that it"s overlooked. And I think,
you know, as you said, It"s just one of those things becomes
the norm. We have to change that.

And one of the things 1"ve been talking about for
the last five years now, this is a cultural shift, and that
scares people when you say that. We"re talking about the
same thing here. And you need to know going into this, we
all need to know, i1t"s been a five- to seven-year process.

I knew that going into this. I"m now in my fifth year. 1I™m

still doing it. 1It"s going to be a process. But only as a
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community can we get together and tackle these issues.

MR. KOGUT: Mr. Epling, are you
familiar with any programs that are effective? For
instance, like, restorative justice, some of the programs
that have -- 1f you"re familiar with that -- that are
working in schools? Any comments on programs?

MR. EPLING: Yes. You know, actually 1 did a
conference earlier this year with someone from restorative
justice. And they have seen really good results. Lansing
and East Lansing -- 1 think Lansing School District has a
program. They have seen very good results. And I think
from my perspective, it is really giving the students the
opportunity to be involved in the course of the school.
They not -- then they take a piece of the ownership along
with the teachers. And if you talk with the teachers and
you bring them into the creation process, it"s ownership and
it"s not simply purchasing something off the shelf and
saying, "Here, teach this."” It"s a day-to-day event. It"s
not a teachable thing. So I thank you very much for the
opportunity. And thank you for holding these hearings.

MS. SALTERS: Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Next up we have Dianne Hobbs.

MS. HOBBS: Hi. How appropriate to follow the

last person, because I work in restorative justice. And so
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that"s my background. 1 used to run alternative to
incarceration programs. |1"ve been a mediator for 22 years
and have worked with kids for 22 years, which 1 tell
everyone that"s pretty amazing, since 1"m only 25.

But having said that, I was -- how would 1 say? --
I was given the role this year of being a truancy gatekeeper
for Saginaw County. And what -- research is my background.
And so one of the things that 1 did is through the summer I
brought the parties together and 1 started to say, "How do
we do the Restorative justice twist to this? And what do we
do to get the parents involved, the educators involved? How
do we bring everybody in?" So throughout the summer |1
busied a committee and we looked at 260 programs nationwide
that have worked and that have not worked.

And one of the important things to know about
Saginaw -- 1"m sure you hear about us on the news quite
often -- but we are third nationally per capita in violence
right now. And so it"s been very important that we look at
these links and what are we seeing. And one of the First
things that we continue to hear from the school staff and
understandably is that we would hear, "These parents are not
invested. Parents are not invested.” Well, 1 started to do
what*s called family facilitation. It"s a program that I
designed myself, and it is Restorative justice, and iIt"s

also facilitation. So | bring the families in, ask the
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families, "What do you need from us?" 1"m a wraparound --
certified wraparound facilitator.

And so what I started to look at, what"s working,
what®s not working. And one of the things that I learned
very quickly is that it has been very easy for people to
pass judgment on why something®s not working. Very easy.

We can look at it and say the parents aren”"t invested, we
can look at it and say the schools do this. We can look at
all of this. So I pulled everybody apart and said, 'Let"s
look at what we think can work.”™ And so in doing that, we
found some -- a process that we"re utilizing. And that is,
from the very First absence we start working with the kids.
My caseload includes children from the age of 7 all the way
through to 15. We actually kind of stop at 15. 16 we still
add them, but at that point we"re really struggling if they
haven®t gotten it by then. And that"s frustrating.

And what we were doing down at the court is, if a
child were kicked out of school, they would come spend the
day with me or they would spend the day with one of the
probation officers or whomever. The Kids liked that. These
kids were learning and they liked 1t. And they liked i1t too
well, because they were working really, really hard at
staying out of school. So our next thing that we started to
notice was a parallel that we had a lot of special needs

kids who were in our group. We are not educators. | work
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restorative justice programs, do social work, but we were
not trained to know what to do with all the kids. And so we
started to say, "What could we do?'" So we started putting

more onto the parents and started working with that.

Now, I will tell you we are in our first year and

we"ve had some bumps. We"ve had -- we"ve been met with the
story, "We work too hard already. It isn"t working. We"re
not going to put any more hours in. You want me to do

another meeting,"” all kinds of frustrating things. But for
those children that people are really caring about, some
things are happening and they®"ve been positive.

The other thing that 1 would really strongly
encourage everyone -- and | did leave it for the panel to
look at -- is "'Schools to the Pipelines of Prison.”™ If
you"re not familiar with that, please make yourself
familiar, because it does talk about how often because we
now have security guards in the schools who may not be
trained in the way to deal with youth and the youth issues,
that more and more Kids are being kicked out of the schools.
And so, you know, that®"s a huge concern for us, too. What
do we do with that, and what"s the approach? And we"ve
talked about possibly more training, we"ve talked about ways

to be able to work with these youth, because really there"s

a lot of Kkids that are displaced.

On a last note, something that one of the parents
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said to me, and 1 really started to take notice, and this
parent, some of the educators have felt has been a very
disgruntled parent. But what the parent said to me made a
lot of sense. She said, "I don"t blame the teachers.'"™ She
said, "The teachers are taught to educate, and they control
their classrooms. And because of that, they have a certain
tone in which they deal with us. And we as parents are
grown, and we need to be talked to and asked of what we
need, not assume that we"re doing the wrong things.” And I
think that"s very important, because sometimes we don"t
think about our tone. 1 mean, even me working with the
court, we don"t think about our tone and what we come off.
And the Kkids have to be engaged if the parent -- the Kids
will be engaged if the parents are engaged. Thank you.

MS. SALTERS: Dianne, let me ask you, you
really -- you talked about your program had evolved to
working with parents and from the first absence. Can you
talk a little bit more about that process?

MS. HOBBS: Sure. What happens is the very first
time that a child misses one day of school, because all of
the studies show in all of the programs that really were
successful, the earlier that you can catch a child in being
truant and missing school, the better it is. So what
happens is the home school aides actually write iIn the

excuse they were given. A referral comes to me, a case
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management referral, which you have the entire packet. [1"ve
left it for the panel. But when that referral comes to me,
I call the parents while the child is in the room with me,
and I will ask the child why they missed, and then 1711 ask
the parent why they missed. And then we start right away
with, "Can you come to school and have a meeting?"” So that
by the third absence 1°m really working with the family and
we"re doing parenting classes, we"re doing referrals.
Sometimes it"s because there®s not electricity, there®s not
food In the house. We"re making all of those referrals up
front and using court at the very last resort.

MR. QUISENBERRY: Just to clarify, not make
assumptions, are you a district-funded program? 1Is it an
intermediate district program? Are you an outside partner?

MS. HOBBS: Well, no. Let me tell you what
happened. And actually there are five of us that have
kicked in our own finances to do this, because we want to
see a change iIn Saginaw. We did get a grant for three
years. The grant monies have been up. So Billy Strauder
(phonetic) is part of this, an Envicare consultant. He
comes in and does the parenting classes. He has kicked
money in. 1%ve kicked my own personal money in this year,
as have three other people. And on top of that, we have
also continued to work these hours for free on top of our

other jobs.
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MS. SALTERS: 1 have one more question, Dianne.
Is there any requirement on the parents® part to
participate?

MS. HOBBS: You know, there®s always the
underlying thing with the parents that, if this doesn"t
work -- what our court system does is that if the children
are under 10 and there®"s not a change in behavior, we
prosecute the parents. |If they“re 10 or above -- well,
actually 11 or above, they go to the court system. 1 have
maybe -- out of the 2,-, 3,000 referrals 1°ve gotten this
year, | have maybe 20 parents that 1°ve had to use that
threat. When 1 call the parents and ask them what they need
or what they want, they will tell us. Thank you.

MS. SALTERS: Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Next up we have Richard Laing.

MR. LAING: 1 thank you for the opportunity to be
here this morning and talk about the Michigan Conservation
Corps. How many people are familiar with the old Civilian
Conservation Corps from the 30"s? That"s pretty good.
That"s a better answer than 1 usually get.

For those of you that are not familiar with it,
when Roosevelt came to power in 1933 he was facing a 25
percent unemployment rate, just a disaster nationwide. So

they set up this program. It was a residential program.
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260,000 recruits were iIn camp in 60 days. What we"re
proposing is that Michigan Tech, who has written the
business plan, will run a residential program for one year.
And for that one year we will aim it primarily at foster
kids that are aging out of the system. It"s for 17, 18,
19-year-olds, but we can begin to recruit at a much younger
age. We can recruit at 16, 15, even 14 in order to give
these kids something to look at, look forward to.

So many of our foster kids have been banged
around. They have nothing to look forward to. They have no
guidance. They don"t see anything out there for themselves,
"So why should 1 stay in school?" Well, once we get them up
to Michigan Tech, way up there on Lake Superior, we can feed
them, clothe them, house them, medicate them, work them,
recreate them. All of the above equals education. If they
don®t have a high school diploma, okay. We*ll work on the
GED. We provide them with a healthy, clean, safe place to
live. In addition to all those things, they"ll earn minimum
wage and they"ll earn $4700 in education credits. That will
come out of the Americorp budget from the federal
government.

So 1°d like to offer anyone that would like to
have that business plan -- and 1t"s about a 40-page business
plan -- if you"d like a copy of that and the book that goes

with it, which is called Proud to Work, which is a history
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of the C"s, not only in the 30"s but when it was reinstated
under Governor Blanchard in the 80°"s and also under Governor
Engler in the 90"s. So we have modern history on this.

It"s a proven model. We know It works. And we give these
foster kids something to look at. Because there®s a book by
the name On Their Own. When they hit age 18, the system
said, "Okay. Joe, here you go. You"re on your own." How
many people in this audience were ready to do all those
things for themselves, feed themselves, clothe themselves,
house themselves, medicate themselves, work themselves? How
many people were ready to do that at 18? |1 wasn"t.

Michigan State University did that for me and for thousands
and thousands of other 18-year-olds.

I thank you for your attention and for the
opportunity to make this story. If anybody would like a
copy of the business plan, please give me your card.

MR. KOGUT: Thank you. That"s very
interesting. | certainly have been up north and seen the
CCC projects up there.

MR. LAING: Sure.

MR. KOGUT: But you talked about a GED.

Are you also looking that these kids could get a diploma?
Are you working with any K-12 educators?
MR. LAING: Oh, yes; yes.

MR. KOGUT: So it"s not just a GED?
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They could potentially get a diploma?

MR. LAING: Yes; yes. We"ll serve all of those
educational needs that are there. Each student, each
recruit, will be evaluated on their own merits. But the key
is we"ve got them 24/7, take them right out of the loop
they"re in, which has not served them well. And if you"ve
got people 24/7, you can do a lot of things that you can"t
do in any other format. Thank you for your attention.

MR. PRATT: Next we have Mark Westerburg.

MR. WESTERBURG: Thanks. Hi. [I1"m Mark
Westerburg. |I°m from Spring Lake Schools, and 1 present all
over the state, in fact, in many states, on secondary school
reform. Probably most noted, I"m kind of considered the
trimester guy.

One of the things that 1 think is really important
is that as a school we often feel like we"re trying to
legislate good education, and it just doesn"t happen that
way. As a school district, 1 feel like we get micro managed
to the point where we can"t operate correctly. 1 mean,
truly there"s two issues here. Dropouts is clearly an
issue, but all the other stuff, Michigan Virtual, Kids
feeling safe, kids feeling good, school improvement is
really simple. There®s always two goals: raise test scores
and make kids feel better about being in your building. 1

mean, other than that, there really aren®"t any other goals.
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So when we spend endless hours putting these big goals,
settings and all that together, it always comes down to the
two same things, you know.

Dropout has to be a multifaceted approach.
Dropout, 1 mean, there are punitive things, obviously. If a
kid drops out of school, maybe they lose their driver"s
license. |If a kid drops out of school, maybe we ought to
require our employers to actually have work permits like
we"re supposed to. And if the kid"s work permit doesn"t say
that they"re in school, they can®t work. So without a job
and a vehicle, they might think that education is not quite
as bad as they had thought.

Some other things, quite simply, education®s
different if you"re in Watersmeet or if you"re at Flint
Beecher. 1t"s always been different, just like it"s
different if you®"re in high school or if you"re in
kindergarten. And we need to allow districts some local
control. We need to be held accountable for our graduation
rate. We need to be given a directive that says, "Tell me
what your graduation' -- "your real graduation rate."

I run our alternative ed program. In my district,
graduation rate®"s not an issue except in our alternative ed.
I"ve got 60 percent was my graduation rate. Well, we only
have 32 kids. Well, that"s because ten of my Kkids were

fifth-year seniors and they hold that against me, which is,
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as | told my board, I could care less if they hold that
against us, because that®"s not why we"re here. We"re not
here to prove a statistic. |I"m here to have kids graduate.
All ten of my fifth-year seniors graduated. All ten of
them. 1 don"t care what the graduation rate they posted
says. It doesn"t make any difference for how we"re going to
operate. Those kids graduated. They need to graduate.

They needed more time.

Unfortunately, we"re doing things like graduation
requirements. Okay. Requirements are not standards. |
know there®s a problem with that. People always confuse
those two. |If we really wanted to raise standards for Kids,
we would have said that no kid in the State of Michigan can
get a high school diploma if they don"t get a 16 on the ACT.
We have all the data. We have all the information. Every
college recognizes what an ACT score is. We know that
stuff. The differentiated diploma 1s a no brainer. We need
to put locating information into place to give the Kids a
career readiness. Kids either need to be on a college bound
track, a career readiness. |If they can"t pass career
readiness, they need to be a special needs student who"s
don"t the MI Access. | mean, there really are only three
choices here. Dropping out should not be one of those
choices.

And Algebra Il seems to be the one that everybody
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talks about as the big thing we really have to focus on.
I"m just curious who picked all these things, "cause if
you"re asking me, I mean, if I"m going to pick something,
I"m going to say that no kid can graduate who"s less than a
ninth grade reading level, not Algebra I1I.

Secondly, if we"re putting these kids through
these new requirements to make them successful in the
economy, then why didn"t we make them take a business class?
The common sense part of this has all seemed to fall by the
wayside and has become micro managed legislative stuff. |1
think we really need to separate those two and say that
schools need to be accountable locally for their graduation
rate.

There®s some awesome programs these people have,
and they"re very generic to where they work for them. They
may work for them. They might not work in Watersmeet or
they might, but they need to at least talk about it. We
need to be talking about how to keep graduation high instead
of what our statistics are. Because you"re right; one is
too many. But we can®"t just keep -- 1 work with districts
constantly who are asking me, "What program should we do?
What program?” Schools are now out searching for programs
instead of looking at themselves to fix the issue. That"s
where the fix is. The fix is in the mirror. It"s not in

buying some program. And 1 really would hope that this
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group could lobby for some common sense to let"s set
expectations for kids. Let"s not keep messing around with
requirements, because those aren®"t going to change things.

A kid graduating with a D- in Algebra Il and a 14 on the ACT
isn"t going to help them.

Colleges have done forever ACT requirements to get
in. You can meet all the graduation standards you want but,
if you don"t have a 27 or 28, don"t send your stuff to Ann
Arbor. Okay? We don"t need to worry about those kids.
That®s not who we"re worried about. So I guess I"m just
asking that you lobby for some common sense. There®s tons
of great ideas out there. Thank you.

MR. KOGUT: Mark, you know, 1 know
Mark. [1"ve heard Mark speak before, and he always keeps --
never says what®"s on his mind, as you can tell. But, Mark,
you know, one of the things when I1"ve heard you talk, we
talk about the interventions. And you®"re doing some great
stuff there. Why don"t you talk about, you know -- because
sometimes kids need different interventions and need them
quicker. Can you talk about that for a second?

MR. WESTERBURG: Yeah. Well, interventions are
the key to everything. That response to intervention model
that special ed is coming out with has long since been
overdue. We need to have interventions in place. |In our

middle school we have this pyramid of interventions. We
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have eight of them and we systematically work through. Each
child, as they struggle, it creates another intervention.
We"re even to the point where if we retain an eighth grader
because we"re a trimester school, we only retain them for
the first 12 weeks. Because you retain them for the whole
year, it"s over. They"re going to go, "Well, I"m an eighth
grader again.” That"s not what we want. We want to
motivate them to move on.

We have things -- and believe me, special ed kids
have big needs. But we need to treat regular ed Kkids as
well as we do special ed kids. We need to be having IEP"s,
we need to be talking with their parents. If they"re
unsuccessftul, we have a class called Guided Academics. And
the reason 1 called it that is so No Child Left Behind can"t
name the teacher for me. Because we need to have a class
that"s an intervention strategy for our at risk kids, ADD,
504, live In a home environment not conducive. |If the child
were in special ed, they"d get a resource study skills hour
and a teacher to mentor and help them. Why wouldn"t we do
that for regular ed kids? We"ve been doing it for about 12
years, and it"s helped. 1 can name 25 kids that would not
have graduated had we not had interventions in place.

Before any kid goes to my alternative ed program, they have
to have been dealt with through the intervention strategies

we have in middle school and high school. 1 won"t take them
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until the building does that. Districts ought to be

required to have intervention strategies in place and that

kids need to be held and teachers and administrators to put

kids through those. Because interventions require parental

engagement, community engagement, whatever your pyramid has

in it, and the teachers and the administrators to really

focus on the child. Unfortunately, as educators, we"re

focusing all kinds of statistics now instead of the Kkid

itself.

you more.

MR. KOEHLER: Mark, 1 couldn®t agree with

But I just can"t -- 1 just can"t -- | hope the

audience catches the irony in you coming to Lansing and

asking for common sense.

MR. WESTERBURG: Yeah.
MR. KOEHLER: [Isn"t that an oxymoron?

MR. WESTERBURG: Yeah. But it"s not just from my

district, by the way. 1 mean, 1 travel all over the state.

In fact, in other states. And other states have exactly the

same problems we do. We"re not unique in that. We just

need to be very diligent. I"m much more concerned when 1 go

to work with a school district what"s their dropout rate,

what"s their casualty rate, not their test scores. Test

scores can be fixed. You“"ve just got to have kids in school

to do that and give teachers the right tools to teach it

correctly.

But you"ve got to have kids in the building.
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You"ve got to care about attendance policies and common
classroom expectations and those kind of things. |If you put
those in place, the test scores will take care of
themselves.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Okay. Next up we have William LeCorn
and several of his students. So come on down. Sarah,
Herman, Marquise, Bianca and -- 1°m going to maul it. I™m
sorry. We®"ll introduce him. Come on down.

MR. LeCORN: Good morning guys or, | guess, good
afternoon. | feel like I"m still at school. My name 1is
Will LeCorn. 1"m a teacher at Education Options, which is
Lansing School District"s alterative program. Can you guys
hear me okay? 1 know it"s kind of weird speaking into a
mic. Am 1 good? Okay. Thanks, Mr. Ross and Mrs. Cole.

So 1 brought a few of our students to just kind of
talk about what we do at the alternative program. They"re
going to talk about a number of things. A few of them are
going to talk about their experiences at the traditional or
the home high schools. Some of them are going to talk about
kind of differences they"re seeing in the teachers between
the traditional and the alternative schools. Some of them I
think are going to talk about some personal experiences in
terms of people they know who have dropped out and why. And

then a couple of them are going to talk about an after
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school project that they were part of this year that they
felt like helped connect them to the school a little bit.
Sound good? Okay. So if you guys have any questions at any
time, 1 think it might actually help them If you gave them
some questions after their little prepared speeches. Okay.
Thanks guys.

MR. MOORE: Hello. My name is Herman Moore, and
I"m a student at Hill Vocational School. And my opinion is
it"s hard for students trying to remember first hour and
seventh hour assignments and homework. At elementary you
work and then have recess, get your time for your brain, you
understand, to have time to breathe. But in middle school
and high school it"s just work, work, work all the time.

And then there®s always one teacher that students probably
don"t get along with and there®s ones that this teacher that
doesn®t push you enough.

I have a few family members and friends that"s
already dropped out, and it"s hard trying to do so much work
and still be a young adult and have fun. 1 could have been
one of those dropout students, but I"m not. |1 don"t have to
because 1 have a teacher and staff members that I can
connect with. And 1 have -- I can have a vocational class
and learn how to build cars and work on computers and EMT"s.
And there®s an after school program -- and 1°d never been

out of Lansing -- that 1"ve done been so many places now.
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I1"ve been to Grand Rapids, Detroit. We visit art museums,
we"ve been on sleigh trails and everything. So being at
Hill Vocational School really helped me out a lot.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.
MS. HARVEY: Good afternoon. My name is Brianna
Harvey. Oh, okay. Good afternoon. My name is Brianna
Harvey, and I attend Hill Vocational School. And the reason
I think Hill is a great school or, you know, because 1 did
attend Everett last year and it was kind of like a struggle.

Like, 1t was kind of hard because, like, the teachers there

were just kind of, like, "Okay. [I"ve got so many students
here. 1 really don"t got to remember this, I really don"t
got to remember that.' But when I"m at Hill it"s like

teachers, like, kind of know you. Like, out of all the
students, they still remember, you know, different people.
And you can relate to them or you can even talk to them
about stuff and they®re understanding and they“re more
caring. Like, it"s like, it"s not just a job to them. It"s
like a passion. And when 1 was at the other school it was
more like, "Okay. Well, hey, here, here®s our assignment.
Do it." But and was, like, "Okay. Well, since they sound
so strict and 1"m, you know, kind of scared to ask the
question.”™ And so I would just be, like, struggling and
1*11 fall behind. And 1 was, like, "Whatever. Forget it."

And when 1 came over to Hill, | started opening up more and
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started understanding things, because our classrooms were
smaller, so it"s kind of like a better environment for me.
And having the different staff members you"re able to talk
to and, like, if they see something wrong they“re, like,
"Hey, Brianna. What"s going on?" Or if they notice you"re
falling behind they"re just, like, encouraging. And I think
that this is something that should be included in all the
schools even, better teachers or -- I"m not really sure
actually. 1 kind of lost my whole speech. Sorry. Okay.
Yeah. Oh, yeah. Okay.

And then also at Hill it"s, like, everybody at
Hill is, like, kind of focused on graduating and they know,
like, "Hey, you know, we want to graduate because there"s
not that many job opportunities out here that you can
actually get without having high school diploma."™ And I
just think Hill is an all-around great school and not only because
of the teachers but because of the programs that we have
like our after school program that Herman was talking about.
And the different other programs like our vocational classes
and everything that"s, so this school really does offer a
lot of great opportunities. Thank you.

MR. HARRIS: Good evening. My name is -- | mean,
good afternoon. My name is Marquise Harris. And before
this semester, | went to Sexton -- 1 mean, J.W. Sexton. And

I had currently -- 1 was currently up until December 1 had
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been dropped out of there. 1 had dropped out because 1™m
kind of nervous, so I couldn"t really do my homework or
nothing because I didn"t know what 1 was doing and | was too
nervous to ask the teacher or anything. So my mom told me 1
should just try to get into Hill, because it"s an
alternative learning program or something and I might be
better at that. So I did that in January and I got in in
February.

And 1 had been doing my work, and I wasn"t really
doing it. 1 was kind of slacking a little bit, but the
teachers were coming up to me and they were asking me if I
knew how to do what I was doing, making sure 1 knew what I
was doing and if I was getting my work in. They actually
cared, whereas the teachers kind of at J.W., they were --
they were telling me -- like, some of them would tell me,
“It"s all right if you don"t do it, because I still get paid

anyway." Some people say that. But over here and then 1
got involved in this after school program and me being -- |
mean, 1"m an aspiring artist. 1°m an aspiring artist, and 1
can -- | draw a lot. So we went to MSU to Kresge Art Center
and 1 seen a lot of —-- 1 mean, a lot of different art pieces
that 1 had never seen before like sculptures and paintings,
vases, all kinds of stuff like that that until then, 1 mean,

all 1 knew was drawing cartoons and basically graffiti.

That"s it.
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So then after that we went to DIA, to Detroit
Institute of Arts, which was something was really cool to
me. Because after Kresge I got into a bunch of art books
and | seen a bunch of stuff that I liked. For instance,

"Watson and the Shark,"™ that®"s a pretty cool art piece |

like. 1 don"t know. 1If you ever get a chance to see that
at DIA, it"s something you should do. But I seen -- | mean,
I1"ve seen all kinds -- I mean, all kinds of stuff and 1 seen

stuff that 1 had only seen iIn books. So that"s pushed me to
kind of try to do other things like painting, like brush
painting and stuff like that. So i1it"s helped me iIn a way.
I mean, 1"m not going to drop out no more. And I"m actually
looking forward to graduating next year.

MR. WILSON: Hello. How you doing? My name is
Lekeuthon Wilson. | attend Hill Education Options. And
dropouts, it"s like, an important thing in our family
because we have a lot of family members who dropped out.
And I was thinking about doing it, because 1 had got
expelled once. And I was doing real bad in my previous
school, Sexton. 1It"s, like, it"s just too big and too many
kids there. And it was, like, the disturbance is at a peak.
And everything was just going downhill for me. 1 was never
able to do my work. Classes was too big and, you know, just
chilling out in the hallways, and 1 got expelled. And my

brother went to this called Hill. He told me about it. And
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I was, like, "All right. 1°m going to try it out.” So I
come to this school, you know. They introduced me to these
vocational classes that they didn®"t have at the regular
schools, like auto tech. 1"m in there currently fixing cars
right now. They"ve got cooking classes up there that my
niece want to, you know, to take up. She likes cooking. And
they“ve just got plenty of classes, like, Plato after
school, you know. You"ve got plenty of time to do your
work. And so I go to this school, you know. The classes
is, like, normal size, you know. Teachers is real cool up
in there.

And, you know, 1 joined this after school program
called the Epicenter, and they did a lot of things | ain"t
never did when 1 was going to -- like, they took me to plays
and, you know, leaving my family, going out of town, you
know, to see, like, the DSI. That"s the art museum that 1
really enjoyed. 1It"s, like, you know, being somewhere
without my family with teachers that care about us. They"re
able to take care of us even though we"re on the road and
all that. So I really appreciated that. Then, you know,
the teachers, like | said, they just, like, real cool and
they can connect with you, unlike the other teachers at the
other school. Because, | guess, classrooms iIs just too big
and, you know, they get annoyed real easily because they"ve

been there for so long. And I know kids just getting bad
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and they just, you know, don"t feel like listening to them.
But at Hill it"s like they"re just part of family, you know.
They"re willing to take care of you. They"ll stay after
school to help you, help you during lunch.

I"m in this online biology class. 1°ve got a
teacher named Ms. Shafer (phonetic). She"s real cool. |1
fell behind on my work when 1 left town for a little bit on
family emergencies. And she just, like, helped me, you
know, just build up the confidence to finish school. ~Cause
I was behind, like, two grades and, you know, I*m down on
credits. And I was just, like, you know, I just wanted to
drop out, you know, try something else, probably, you know,
do sports or rapping, try my chances with that. But when |
came to Hill it was like everything changed "cause there"s
so many different, you know, opportunities you can take up
with the vocational classes that you can just take advantage
of.

So, yeah, 1"m here to help the dropout rate and
the schools out there, you know. Thank you.

MR. LeCORN: 1"ve got a couple more students.
This next one has a lot to say, so 1"m going to kind of
break down her introduction a little bit. Her name is
Bianca Harvey, which I want you to say again anyways. She"s
going to talk about something very specific we did in the

after school program and how it tied into the curriculum
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specifically over the topic of slavery and the Underground
Railroad.

MS. HARVEY: Hi. My name is Bianca Harvey. 1
also attend Hill Education Options. And I'm in the after
school program there, the Epicenter project. And in the
Epicenter project we do a lot of things. Can you guys hear
me? Well, 1711 start over. Hi. My name is Bianca Harvey,
and I also attend Hill Education Options. And I"m in the
after school program, as you all probably know. But we do
numerous things. We go on different trips, we do
different -- just different things that most schools or most
students don"t get the opportunity to experience.

And one of the things that we did was in the month
of October we had -- we studied slavery. And we watched a
movie, "Amistad,” which was a very powerful movie. And
though i1t stirred up so much anger in me, I learned what the
slaves had to go through while trying to escape to their
freedom. And we also went to Leslie, Michigan, to go
through the Slave Trail course. And to end our trip we
actually ended it in a unique way. We went to Cincinnati,
Ohio, to the National Underground Railroad Freedom Center
where 1t was just amazing. We saw all kind of artifacts,
all kind of -- we just saw everything. But It was to be
there to actually see what we read about in the books, to be

there to see what became so much interest to us, It was
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overwhelming.

And one of my favorite displays was where | saw a

replica of men and women and the baby that had no clue as to
what was even going on in the hull of a ship chained
together. To see something -- to see human beings as not
men or women just -- it really enraged me and it made me
really upset. But it also enlightened me because it showed
me how far we as a people, a country and a nation have come.
And through this trip 1 learned -- it helped me -- it
allowed me to express myself through poetry, and I wrote a
poem called "The Chains of Horror™ that 1 entered in the
annual Detroit Free Press contest. And I was one of two
people to win in the Mid Michigan area. Thank you.

MS. LINDSLEY: Good afternoon. My name is Sarah
Lindsley. [I"m finishing up my junior year at Hill Education
Options. | participate in the Epicenter project and
extended school day program coordinated by my teacher, Mr.
LeCorn. 1™"m aware and pretty worried about the decision
that"s going to be made soon determining not only whether
the school 1°m currently attending will be open next year or
not, but also my future.

Before the start of this past school year, my
credit situation was horrible. In my home school it seemed
like all the material and everything 1 was learning was just

moving so fast. And by the time I finally learned it, we
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were moving on to something else. | have lots of credits to
make up, and 1 had no idea what to do or where to start.
Dropping out wasn"t an option for me, so | enrolled at Hill.
From the moment I walked into my Ffirst period class, | knew
I was in a good place. Never before had I experienced such
caring, genuine teachers or such effective learning and
teaching strategies. By the end of my first day, 1 was so
excited that | got to attend a school where everyone was
genuinely -- where everyone genuinely cares about every
student that walked in the doors. We weren"t treated as bad
kids because we attended an alternative school.

At Hill we are treated as individuals taking
advantage of the second chance that was given to us. In my
opinion, everyone deserves a second chance. The second
chances for the students that know their minds and potential
would be wasted iIf they were to drop out. It"s for us the
students that won"t give up and won"t let the foolish
decisions that we made when we were 14 or 15 effect the rest
of our futures. 1"m anticipating graduating next year from
Hill with every intention of attending college right after.

When the decision of what to do about Lansing®s
alternative schools is made, I hope 1°m considered. 1 hope
the hundreds of other students planning to graduate from
Hill are considered. The program I"m in and how Hill is

now, that®"s what"s working. | honestly don"t think there"s
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any other school, program, group of teachers that could
better prepare us for college and the real world. Thank
you.

MR. LeCORN: Hey, good job, guys. 1™m really
proud of my students right now. Good job, guys. So just
really quickly, this wasn®"t meant to be like a huge plug
for, you know, our program specifically. But 1°ve been a
teacher for eight years in the Lansing School District, and
seven years in the alternative programs. And honestly,
they"ve kind of morphed and changed on a year-by-year basis.
So I really think the thing 1 found is, you know, there"s no
one size Tits all answer to the needs of all of our kids.
Even within the context of Hill, we have ELL students, we
have students who are there because of credit recovery, we
have students who are there as Sarah mentioned because they
made mistakes when they were 14 or 15 and, you know, they"re
just looking for a place to get back on track. So I"ve
really kind of found over the years that the thing we need
or probably any school or community needs is the time and
resources to kind of be creative, to kind of be innovative
to meet the needs of kids who are falling through the
cracks.

I think we"re finding, you know, if you®ve done
any research in alternative schooling, you know, the need is

growing. People need a place to go and get on track and
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graduate. Thank you.

MS. SALTERS: 1 do have one question. How are you
as an alternative school looking at the new requirements
under our new requirements for graduation?

MR. LeCORN: Sure. As part of the school
district, and I don"t know if you"re from this area, but we
have a new superintendent, new administration. And so
basically all the teachers have been going through the same
trainings at our school as the other schools or whatnot. So
all our curriculum is getting aligned to the standards or
whatnot. So I think that is really kind of our big
challenge, how do we take kids who didn"t make it at the
traditional school, who didn"t make it with the, quote,
unquote, "traditional curriculum,”™ and either modify it or
give them more time or provide supplements, you know, so
they can reach the same standards. And | think that"s
actually one of the reasons why we created this, you know,
mini after school program for the last couple of years.
Because the reality is, you know, if you"re behind, it"s
jJust simple math. You need more time to catch up, you need
more help. We"ve had MSU tutors work with us for the last
six years, you know. There®s, | mean, the reality is we
need more -- they need more time. They need more help
that"s going on in the traditional schools. Did I kind of

answer your question, sort of? Okay.
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MR. PRATT: Thank you all. All right. Next up we
have J.R. Rauschert.

MR. RAUSCHERT: Good evening. Thank you for this
opportunity. | really appreciate 1t. | represent Holt
Central High School, a small alternative high school just
down Cedar Street. And I had the privilege of starting that
program back in 1982. 1 was told at that point that it was
a five-year burnout job, so I guess | burnt out Five times.
But an interesting thing about alterative educators, when
they"re asked what do they teach, almost all of us say, "We
teach students.”™ And most high school teachers say that,

"We teach history or math or something.” And I think the
one thing that is often forgotten is the student in the
whole equation.

The kids that 1 deal with and have dealt with for
the last over quarter of a century are hurting kids, Kids
who have gone through an awful lot of things. They come
from -- a massive number of them are from divorced families,
many of them live on their own, many of them started using
illegal substances at very young ages. We have a lot of
recovering alcoholics, some of them are young parents.

They"re going through a whole gamut of things.

And the area that that really comes out in 1is

mathematics. Our average incoming reading level -- we

pretest our students -- is high school level. They come in
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reading ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth grade level. The
average math level we get from our students is fifth or
sixth grade. And then we"re trying to help them get just up
to a reasonable level.

I want to talk about three specific students that
we have this year, and they“"re typical of many other
students. All of them are remarkably fine young people.

All of them have major stories that | won®"t go into tonight.
One of them is a young man who runs our school store. He
looks like a 1960"s kid; long hair, has got the piercings
and he"s got tattoos and he always dresses in a very
alternative manner. But he runs our school store and he
handles the money, he handles the inventory, he does the
sales, the marketing, and he does an excellent job. The
young man can"t get past Algebra 1. He just can"t. It"s a
major struggle. He may not graduate because of that. But

he*"s someone dependable, reliable, believable, someone that

I trust a great deal. 1 trust him with my endorsed
paycheck. 1 mean, this Kkid is reliable through the
ying-yang.

Another young man just lost his father a couple of
years ago, had started his own business with his dad®"s help
when he was 16 years old. His dad died. The kid fell
apart. The kid still is very -- under a great deal of

stress. He got into too many substances; came iInto our
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program. Right now he®"s off of things, but it"s a struggle
every day; very depressed at times. He wants to start his
business again. He will do 1t. He has a plan. His fTather
had helped him set that up. He and I talk about the plan.
He has good ideas for it. He knows what he has to do. He
started the business up again. It"s a lawn mowing business
and he has bigger plans for that. And he®s worked with some
local police officers who have their business, and they“ve
given him their surplus customers. And he"s building up a
clientele.

This very fine young man who"s depressed cannot do
geometry or Algebra Il. He"s going to be a really good
business person someday. He"s going to be a success. But
he may not get a high school diploma. He should have
graduated last Friday, but he didn®"t do it because of a
couple classes, a couple math classes he couldn®t handle.
He" 11 be back next year.

A young lady, one of the -- maybe the best artist
we"ve had in 26 years, she does amazing work. The teachers
jJust, you know -- they ask her to help with things in the
area of creativity, beautiful. We entered a banner at the
Michigan Alternative Education Organization Stars. It"s a
student organization that had an event earlier In May. And
her banner was like the best banner there. It was an

amazing thing. Once again, there"s certain classes that she
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struggles with. She"s great at government, she®s great at
English, she"s great at writing. She"s really good at a
number of other classes, but she can®t handle Algebra 11I.
She may not graduate. Those are the people we need to
remember, the kids. There are certain things that we are
expecting of the kids that some of them can"t do.

By the way, each one of them have major personal
stories that got them into our program. But hopefully you
all understand about the type of students we get. Thank you
very much.

MR. KOGUT: Mr. Rauschert, you started
off by saying the concept that you talked to the teachers
and they say they teach history or math, whatever, but you
teach students. Do you care to elaborate a little bit about
the adult-centered schools and buildings we have in high
school versus a student-centered building?

MR. RAUSCHERT: Yeah. The three most important
things in alternative education are relationships with
students, relationships with students and relationships with
students. It"s something I was taught a long time ago by a
wonderful man. And that"s very true. When our students
come to us, many of them hate schools and hate teachers.

And sometimes -- 1"m old, so I am going to make a Vietnam
reference. We have to win the hearts and minds of our

students. And we do that. We turn our schools into
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families, and sometimes they run through walls for us
because they care about us and they know that we care about
them. Yes.

MR. QUISENBERRY: Thank you for coming and
articulating that. 1"11 put you on the spot just a little
bit. |1 appreciate the three stories and the challenge
there. Do you believe that if we were to dive deeper
earlier in these kids®" situations and make sure that those
math skills were developed early that that might be a
different outcome in a story? And should we address it that
way? Or is it truly something that just can®t be achieved?

MR. RAUSCHERT: In the Atlantic Monthly the June
issue there was an article by a college professor who
teaches at community college. And he made the point that
there are some who just aren"t quite college material. |
think an awful lot more students can be successful, but 1
think there are some that just won®"t. And teaching them job
skills -- four years of math is fine. 1 mean, algebra is
excellent, you know. But some of the requirements aren"t
thinking about the whole group of students. Thank you.

MR. PRATT: All right. Next up we have Kacie
Kefgen, who is the legislative aide to Representative Joel
Sheltrown.

MS. KEFGEN: Hello. Hopefully you can all hear

me. Is this the right space? Thank you. Wonderful. Thank
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you. Like Doug said, 1"m Representative Sheltrown®"s
legislative aide. My name is Kacie Kefgen. We had a good
segue from that last speaker. Currently my representative
is working on a bill that would change those Michigan Merit
Curriculum requirements a little bit.

A situation that we ran into up in our district,
which s in northern Michigan, some of the educators up
there came to Joel, my boss, and said, you know, '"‘Hey, we"re
not sure if this Michigan Merit Curriculum is really
appropriate and relevant for all of our students. They were
especially concerned with the Algebra 1l requirement, maybe
the science requirement, and mostly when those requirements
come at the expense of a career technical education. And so
this bill that we have introduced would allow students to
use up to four credits toward graduation and towards their
diploma, four credits of career technical education, toward
that diploma.

I1"ve got an outline of the bill, a little bit more
information, if you"re interested. We"d love to have more
information from people in the community, from educators.

We can"t get enough of 1t. So we"d love to hear your
stories. If you want to e-mail me or call me, I1*d love to
hear what you have to say. Any criticism or questions would
be great as well. 1 want to make sure -- oh, we understand

that this isn"t a silver bullet to the solution; that the
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challenges that our students face and to make sure that we
don"t have a huge dropout increase with the Michigan Merit
Curriculum or for any other reason; that this won"t address
everything. But it"s we hope that it"1l be a step iIn the
right direction and, you know, we welcome your input.

Yeah. And I just want to let you know that 1 have
my business card available and this outline if anybody®s
interested in more information.

MR. KOEHLER: If 1 could, we at Kent run quite a
sizeable career technical center. And the representative
might be iInterested to know that each of our programs has a
business advisory council of local business people. But
perhaps more importantly, if the goal is to have more
students attend college, we"re required by our federal
Perkins Grants to follow up with students one year after
their graduation. And across the state, the average is 70
percent of students who complete a two-year career technical
education are in a college -- are in post secondary
education after they"ve completed, and 50 percent of those
students are in a four-year institution, four-year college.
So the college articulation of CTE students iIs quite great.

MS. KEFGEN: 1 would absolutely love to sit down
with you and see your data. That would be beautiful.

MR. KOEHLER: Thank you.
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MR. PRATT: All right. Next up we have Dionnedra Reid.

MS. REID: Hello. Yes, my name is Dionnedra Reid,
and 1 have three children in high school now at Sexton, two
ninth graders and a senior. And one of the things that I ve
noticed, 1 have a child with special needs and 1"m also a
parent trainer advocate with CAUSE. And a lot of
the kids with special needs, ADHD or any of those
disabilities, are being suspended and for long periods of
time, missing a lot of school.

Like, I"m helping a young lady right now. And
she®s been out of school since January 2007. She®s been iIn
school for two weeks. And she®"s been out for really pretty
much something that you really can®"t explain on the, you
know -- the extensive time that she®"s been out. And just
with myself having my own child, he"s been out of school
for, you know, long frames of time where 1"ve had to go down
to administration and say, you know, "This is quite

ridiculous,™ and then they will put him back in school. But
that is one of the problems that 1°ve been trying to battle
and one of the reasons 1°ve gotten involved with CAUSE is to
try to help families with children with disabilities,
because we"re noticing that they are getting suspended at
large rates and then being out of school. And once you“re

out of school for so long, eventually those kids know that

when they get a certain age they don"t have to go to school
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anymore. And so at that point in time, they give up. And
so that"s something, like I said, that 1°ve been working on
for awhile now because 1"ve been fighting a battle with my
own child, but I"ve decided to just help other families.

MS. SALTERS: Ms. Reid, what are you suggesting
that the schools and the community could put in place that
would help students such as that?

MS. REID: Well, one of the -- one of the big
things is | know someone said something about an 1EP, which
when I go into the schools with the teachers is | think that
there needs to be a lot more training. We have teachers --
I1"ve had teachers tell me when, as soon as they find out my
son has an IEP that, "I"m not a special education teacher."
Well, he®"s in general ed. So I think there"s a lot of
training that needs to take place. Parent involvement
definitely needs to take place. 1 mean, it"s a big problem,
it"s a huge problem. So it"s going to take a lot. But I
think a lot of it is parent involvement and definitely
training for our teachers and iIn our administrators in the
school on this, "cause a lot of times even a child like, you
know, my son, he"s argumentative, they"ll put you out for
ten days for that. And really for ten days, | mean, is it
insubordinate, you know? Yes, it is. 1Is it being

disrespectful? Yes, it is. But is it worth a child being

out of school for a month losing their education? No, it"s not.

MS. SALTERS: Okay. Thank you.
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MR. PRATT: Next we have Tim Russ.

MR. RUSS: Thanks a lot. My name is Tim Russ, and
I teach at Hill Vocational Career Academy. 1 teach
alternative students at that center. And some of those
students that spoke earlier were some of my students, and
I"m a little emotional after listening to them speak.

I think for me alternative education and dealing
with dropouts is all about the first paper you write when
you become an education student when you want to become a
teacher. You have to write a paper about your educational
philosophy. And to me the educational philosophy that we
need to solve the dropout rate is we have to meet Kkids where
they are. We have to meet every kid where that kid is;
right?

I believe in that philosophy because 1 come out of
a community organizing background. 1 went to teaching from
organizing. Okay. And we have to be focused on outcomes.
When you go on an organizing campaign in the community or in
a union or something like that, your goal is to win. And in
my classroom with my students, my goal is to win with every
kid. 1°m trying to get every kid to be successful by
winning. Wherever that kid is, | don"t say the kid can"t

read. 1 don"t say the Kkid doesn"t speak English. 1 don"t
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say -- | say, "That kid has to win." 1 have to get them to
the finish line. And my -- and that"s every day the
philosophy 1 come with is meeting the kid where they are and
taking them where 1 want to go.

The other things is teachers are the best thing
for every kid. A relationship with a teacher that cares is
the key to keeping a kid in school and getting them to the
finish line. A teacher that cares what happens to that kid,
and you can see that the students that were here before,
they get it. They all know -- the kids know that what they
need is a teacher that cares about them, and they~“re looking
desperately for that teacher. And we have a lot of teachers
in our profession that understand that and they believe in
that philosophy and they"re great teachers. And the others
that don"t have that philosophy, they are ready for that.
They*re begging for it.

It"s difficult to work with students who are
drop-ins. Dropouts is the problem, but the real problem are
drop-ins, kids that rarely come to school. And when they"re
there, they"re not engaged in school. And so you can"t --
iIt"s hard to win when you"re on the football field with
three players against 11. It"s difficult. 1It"s hard for
kids to fit into a school with 30 classes of 35-plus. It

doesn"t work.

And the bottom line, as it always comes down to in
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every organizing campaign, it"s about the money. We need
more money. We have to understand that if we want to have a
Michigan Merit Curriculum that high schools cost more money
than other schools. You can®t give school districts the
same amount of money K-8 as you do for 9-12. Those programs
need more money. And if we"re going to be outcome focused,
then we have to get out of this idea of every kid has to
finish in four years and every kid gets $7,000. No. We
have to be outcome focused and pay for what it takes to get
kids to the finish line. |1 mean, | hate to say it gets down
to the economics, but we need more money.

And 1f we have to take it from the prison budget,
which is what 1 told my state representative on MEA lobby
day, | said, "We need to take money out of the prison budget
and put it into education.” We don"t need to be secret
about it. We need to say it directly. We need to go, "That
money is better spent in our school than it Is iIn your
prison and give it to us.”" So thank you.

MR. PRATT: Next up we have Tracie Taylor.

MS. TAYLOR: Good afternoon. Good afternoon. My
name is Tracie Taylor, and 1 am the director of the High
School Diploma Completion Initiative at Lansing Community
College. And 1 have the privilege of working with 40 of I
think our community®s Ffinest young people who at one time

were considered dropouts within Eaton, Clinton and Ingham



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

66

Counties.

In 2006 the High School Diploma Completion
Initiative was launched as a partnership with Lansing
Community College, the Lansing School District, Ingham
Intermediate School District, Clinton County RESA and Eaton
Intermediate School District. And it was a pilot program
designed to capture what we thought was an untapped economic
resource. There were students that were not completing high
school. Because they were not completing high school, they
were not engaged in high skill, high wage kinds of
employment opportunities. And in essence, we were losing
them as a part of our workforce.

At the same time, Lansing Community College always
has a need to be able to provide not only as an educational
resource but certainly to support our K-12 institutions.

And so it seemed like a real natural partnership, but
sometimes a partnership that because of the dropout
population we may not have taken into consideration. And so
with this was the inception of the High School Diploma
Completion Initiative.

And I*m pleased today to report that, again, as I
said, | work with 40 of some of the most dynamic students.

I often say our students come to the program and they®ve
disconnected with high school for a variety of reasons, most

often not because they are not smart, not because they R.N.
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intelligent. They"ve disconnected because for whatever
reason high school just didn"t fit for them. But they"re
very excited to be college students.

The nice thing about our program that I think is
also very unique is that our program gives students the
opportunity to be concurrently enrolled. And most of our
alterative programs, some of the other resources that we
provide within our community, doesn"t give the student the
opportunity to not only finish their high school diploma but
also to be a college student.

Our students complete their high school
requirements on the downtown campus at LCC. And because of
that, 1 often say to them as the director, I'm like, "Well,
your backpack doesn"t look any different than anybody else®s
backpack.'™ Which means that 1 expect the same level of
maturity and the same level of confidence and skill from the
students who are high school completers as 1 would from a
traditional college student.

I"m also pleased to announce that because of this
program we were able to capture three Michigan Promise
scholars that had at one time disconnected from their high
schools. But through the work and diligence of myself and
the folks who work within the Intermediate School Districts,
we were able to backtrack and see how many of those students

had taken the MEAP, how many of those students had taken the
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Michigan Merit exam prior to exiting their high school and
then which of those students were eligible for the Michigan
Promise money. These were students who had disconnected.
And some might say maybe that they didn"t care about whether
or not they had gotten the award money. But I tell you
what, this year 1 have three students, and those three
students are continuing their education at Lansing Community
College because they did care and they wanted that money.
But had we not had this opportunity availed to them, they
certainly would not necessarily have sought on their own to
find out whether or not they were Michigan scholars -- or
Michigan Promise scholars.

Another student that 1°d like to share with you is
that at the start of our pilot we enrolled a young lady who
was a Lansing School District student. And she at the same
time was also a young mother. She had been in a car
accident and that car accident prevented her from completing
her high school credits. 1"m pleased to say that today and
after two years in May we have awarded this young lady her
high school diploma. In August she has one more class to
take and she will complete her general associate®s degree.
That just doesn"t happen in any ordinary program. It has to
be a program that provides students with not only the
academic means but also the personal support that we"ve

heard many of us talk about today where students are
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connected with staff, where students feel connected to the
college faculty, where they have the resources that are
available to them on campus iIf they have special needs. |
didn"t mention also, but this young lady who is getting her
general associate®s degree was also certified as a special
needs student in her high school. But today she has a
part-time position that will lead to a full-time position
with Sparrow Hospital.

So 1°d like to just take this time to not only
share information about the High School Diploma Completion
Initiative, but also to encourage any of you who are working
with students, any of you who have the ability to make
change, which 1 think we all do whether it"s through voting
or speaking with our legislators, to let them know how
valuable these students are and that they are students who
want to and are willing to learn. But we ask our students
to step it up a little bit. We expect nothing but the best
from them in the High School Diploma Completion Initiative.
They are college students, and we expect for them to behave
as such. 1 thank you for your time, and good afternoon.

MR. KOGUT: I don"t have a question as much as
give support to Tracey here. Ingham has been a partner for
ever since the inception of the program.

And several things we looked at when we were

putting this program together, really the concept of a
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middle college is something we looked at, you know, as there
is in Genesee has an excellent one. We also when we started
this, we got the local school districts to buy in because we
said, "We"re not taking your kids. We"re just taking
dropouts. That"s all we"re taking is dropouts."

Because of the good work Tracey and her staff are
doing, this year all the school districts in the tri-county
area agreed that it"s no longer just dropouts, any kid can
go there. So that just shows you that this is growing and
how important it really is. And the last thing I would like
to say, this is a good example of the continuum of services
that we need available everywhere. Not all kids will be
successful. You"ve got to go there. There"s some college
requirements. But some kids will, and that"s what we"re
striving for in Ingham County and other areas, a continuum
of services so that all kids can be successful. Tracey,
you"re doing a great job.

MS. TAYLOR: Thank you. And I think it is
important to mention the partnerships, because we could not
do it if we did not have access to our social service
agencies, 1T we didn"t have community partners. It"s not
just K-12. We couldn™"t do it. And many of you who are
sitting in this room, we know that we need some of those
other resource because the students come to us and they have

so many other issues that are not just related to academia.
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But academia, once we open those doors to them and help them
to see that they can be successful, because we"re moving
some of those barriers -- and I call them the real or
imagined barriers -- but for them they"re very real, and 1
say, you know, my students sometimes can be one flat tire
from a crises. But I need to help them to fix that flat
tire and let"s get through that crises and let"s move on.
And so again, 1 thank you for all of the work that you guys
are doing, and thank you, Mr. Kogut.

MR. PRATT: Okay. Next up we have Person Cole.

MS. COLE: Good evening. My name is Person Cole.

I work for the Lansing School District. 1"ve been iIn
alternative education for awhile. 1 was kind of that
alternative kid, so there was a natural flow iInto

alternative education.

Dropouts have been a passion of mine. That"s why

I embraced the new alternative education. And after
listening to many conversations through Internet with this
whole process and how you all are traveling around the
state, and in the position that I am in, you heard many
students that"s from my school, you know, *rah,” some of my
colleagues have come and spoken. This is a multifaceted

issue. And it will only be solved multifacetly.

Yes, we do need more money. One of my colleagues

spoke about adapting. We do need adaptation for these
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students. These students need to be wrapped around to be
successful. These students get discouraged. All you have
to do is open up the newspaper. That®s all. Open up the
newspaper and you go, "l see what®"s going on here.” And it
is a monumental task, but we need to simplify.

There was someone talking about math. Now, math
is developmental. And if anyone here is a math teacher,
they can testify to this. That"s my craft is math. And we
know that the brain itself, how it grabs in information and
holds information, we know that math is an intelligence.

And so when students are In these math classes, unless there
is a developmental maturation rate to understanding the
concepts in Algebra I or Algebra 11, it will be difficult
for them. Can the students learn it? Yes, about the time
they"re 35 years old. Now, are we going to keep a
35-year-old iIn high school? No. That causes problems.

But as a math teacher and looking at what the
state required for the MME, for the life of me, 1 do not
understand some of those requirements. 1°m not real sure
where they came from. And even though 1°m an educator and
even though 1"m watching how the legislature®s coming up
with things, it"s, "Hmm, what does that do for our kids?"

We lose 90 percent of our Kkids in the ninth grade across the
state, across the United States. We lose 90 percent in the

ninth grade. Okay. 1 want that to sink in a moment. So
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before they even have a history to flow through high school,
we"ve already lost them. Why? If we can answer that
guestion, that can help us begin to develop programs. We
have already heard from the numerous people who have spoken
here. We know we need resources. Without resources, our
children will not be successful. One is too many.

I have always said I will pay up front first than
on the back end. And what I mean by that, in education we
need fiscal responsibility, but we need bodies, we need help
in the communities, parents are part of it, kids are part of
it, businesses are part of it. And we need to talk about
the multifacets. That"s what we need to develop in those
areas and partnerships like LCC"s high school initiative
program. 1"m going to give that a plug, even though they
are my competition. But they have a good idea on what we
can do with our children.

We need to slow the bus down in terms of educating
our young people, because it"s going way too fast. In the
world of education, we"re too reactionary. We like to react
first, go over the cliff first, instead of slowing down,
let"s see what we can do. So I am here as an alternative
educator person saying we need to address dropouts
multifacetly. We need to slow down. Communities, the young
man was saying local community. We do need local community

control for these students. Thank you.
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MS. SALTERS: Let me ask you one question. Do you
think we"re focusing -- when we focus in on high school, are
we focusing in on the wrong area?

MS. COLE: When you say specifically high school,
are you saying are we starting --

MS. SALTERS: That 9-12 kind of --

MS. COLE: That 9-12? 1 would say that it"s late.
It would be late. We need to slow down. We need to start
to build from the elementary on up, including community
resources. At high school we"re only putting Band-Aids on.
We"re triaging.

MS. SALTERS: Do you have a suggestion for how we
start that ball rolling?

MS. COLE: At the high school level?

MS. SALTERS: No. [I"m talking about just in the
school district to build toward that.

MS. COLE: Just In -- okay. Yes. One of my
suggestions would be in any community we bring players to
the table within the school district, all players to the
table. And that will be a start. And we can even break it
down into small quadrants. If I"m in this quadrant, who are
the players at the table? If we see we have no parents at
the table, stop the process. We need to get some parents at
the table. |If the parents need help, whether it"s through

social services or through somebody else to help them, come
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to the table. That"s what we need to do. But we need
players at the table, vested, 1 think, stakeholders, some
big fancy word like that, stakeholders to come to the table.

MS. SALTERS: Thank you.

MR. KRESNAK: Ms. Cole, 1 liked your
comments on development and having the intellectual
capabilities to do math. But doesn"t that start even before
kindergarten in the early stages of a child"s development,
you know, 80 percent of their brain develops before they
ever get to kindergarten?

MS. COLE: |Interesting enough, if you"re familiar
with Howard Gardner®s multiple intelligences, we know that
children have gifts. And adults have gifts too, but
children have gifts. Some children®s giftings will not be
in the arena of mathematics. And so there is what we call a
learning curve or a developmental curve where they will
reach a saturation rate. And iIn that saturation rate, they
can only go so far, “cause that"s not their intelligence.
They"re gifted in mechanical, putting things together, but
not necessarily writing English.

And 1°m finding like the gentleman, Mr. Russ, had
said, adapting to that student. Can all students do math?
Yes. Can all students do math at the same level? No. Some
students”® abilities are that"s their forte. They love it.

The engineers love 1t. That"s their world. But other
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students, not necessarily. We heard about students with
disabilities. That may -- their learning curve may not be
able to reach that high. But can they learn? Yes. Does
that help answer your question?

MR. KRESNAK: Well, 1 was more reaching
for the high quality preschool educational programs that
really help, especially children at risk, to develop the
tools they need before they even get to kindergarten.

MS. COLE: Okay. 1°"m old school. To me for the
little ones, babies need to play. They need to be outside.
They need fresh air. 1 think we Inundate our little ones
too early, too soon, and we don"t give their brains time
enough to catch up. At risk ones, they do need support. No
doubt, they do need support. But how we do that support, we
still need to give them that time for their brains to grow.

MR. KRESNAK: All right. Thank you.

MS. COLE: You"re welcome.

MR. PRATT: Jack, before you take off, anything
you want to share briefly? Because | know you do have to
leave.

MR. KRESNAK: Well, 1 do think that we need to
have a sense of urgency in this state, and these forums are
really helping create that urgency. There are quite a few
things legislatively under consideration right now that we

need your support on with the conference committees talking
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about smaller school size and a lot of early childhood
education things that were approved by the House. The
Senate and the House, they have to work these things out,
and then we have to get i1t signed by the governor. Anybody
that can make a contact to your legislator, it would be very
helpful to do that. And thank you, and keep up the good
work .

MR. PRATT: Thanks for joining us today, Jack.
Next we have Greg Shook.

MR. SHOOK: Good afternoon. Can you hear me okay
in the back? Not yet? 1™m Greg Shook. 1[I™"m the principal
of Meridian High School. We run an alternative program in
Ingham County, and we"ve also hosted the teen parent program
for the county for about 20 years.

So one thing I keep hearing tonight is a lot of
people are very passionate about what we do in working with
at risk kids. The other thing 1 keep hearing is that we
need more time. The Ffive-year graduation -- or four-year
graduation rate is killing us. And it"s forcing alternative
programs to close around the state. And at the very time
when we are iIncreasing the needs for more help, more
remediation for the graduation requirements, we are actually
cutting the opportunities for a number of students.

For example, this year we had 21 babies born at

through our nursery. Fortunately, none on site. We hosted
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about 70 teen parents through the year. And the program has
been very successful, and it"s being cancelled here at the
end of the year because of lack of funding. So Ingham
County 1is really going to have to, you know, find some other
options, because Haslett Schools can®"t afford to subsidize
the program.

We"ve done some detailed analysis financially.
And if the average state aid is about $72-7300 a student,
we were spending about $10,500 per student to educate at
risk kids. The sad thing is that we don"t receive the
additional reimbursement. The childcare costs alone for our
program was over $100,000 last year. It was killing us.

The other thing that happens is that we had
students from 12 different school districts. Virtually
everybody that comes to an alternative program does so
because they®re behind in credits. Then the host school,
whether i1t"s Haslett, Holt runs the program, NEC does, the
host school gets penalized for those kids not graduating in
four years. It doesn"t make sense, but that is how schools
are being measured. We graduated 45 students last week with
a regular diploma. 16 of those kids counted as dropouts
because it took them five years or six in some cases to
finish. It makes no sense.

The problem is compounded around the state, and

what you also have been hearing is that not one solution



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

79

fits everybody, you know. There®"s a host of variations
here. Many of the alternative programs have a specialty.
It might be career technical education, it could be a teen
parent program, It might be community service. But these
programs find niches to fill that help students tie into a
school, to a concept, to a job.

What 1 see is Kkids are dropping out because they
don*"t see the value in what they"re doing. It"s very
shortsighted. And the state needs to iIncrease the
graduation -- or the mandatory school attendance age. Kids
at 16 don"t know what"s good for them. A lot of times they
don"t wake up until they“"re in their 20°s. But we need time
to work with the at risk population. We need at least a
five-year graduation rate. We need the mandatory dropout
age raised, and we need some additional money to work with
these at risk kids. 1It"s just terribly expensive from a
dollars and cents viewpoint when kids drop out.

The statistics that 1 have seen -- | see Bill
Cosby was just talking again this last week -- a high school
kid that drops out, doesn"t finish, is 70 percent more
likely to be arrested in their lifetime than a high school
graduate. That"s pretty powerful. We"re spending $7200 a
year to educate a kid, and we"re spending 30,000 or more to
incarcerate somebody who doesn®"t finish. And those 1 think

are the choices that we"re really looking at, you know.
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Also, you know, there"s a moral viewpoint. It"s such a
waste of humanity. Many of these students are very capable
students. Lack of ability Is not the reason that they"re in
alternative programs.

We hosted a meeting with Senator Mike Rogers and
all the area superintendents in Ingham County. We did a DVD
that 1°11 pass on that Stan asked me to bring. 1°m sorry we
can"t play it. |1 also am going to send some health at risk
behaviors for alternative school students compared to
regular high school. 1 think you"ll find it amazing that
there are many reasons why kids are dropping out, and it"s

not lack of ability. Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Thank you. Okay. Next up we have Jan

Hall.

MS. HALL: Thank you. My name is Jan Hall. [I™m
an owner of a business. [1"ve been In business for seven
years. I*m a little different than everyone who"s here,

because I don"t have children. 1 never was blessed with
them, so I don"t have them. But a year ago it was laid on
my heart to really look at keeping kids in school. How can
we keep kids in school?

So we went out, we looked at all sorts of
different programs. We looked at all sorts of programs,
things that were going on, issues, whether It was the young

kids, whether it was kids that were junior high, whether the
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kids were in senior high. We looked at all of these issues.
And we found out that there are so many issues. We had some
people saying it has to be a high touch program. We looked
at things like WMCAT in Grand Rapids. That"s the West
Michigan Center for Arts and Technologies. And it"s just an
incredibly successful program, but it"s a high touch
program. Everybody said we need high touch.

Well, 1 was thinking, you know, we"re really into
computers these days. We"re really into them. So we formed
a team and we started saying, ''Let"s create a program that
we can work with kids, because they"re always on the
computer and we"ll help them think about choices.” And we
had a team of about six to eight people. Some of them are
here with me tonight. And we found out that we lost
interest with 1t. 1t wasn"t about relationships. It wasn"t
about what touched the heart. Because when you and I sit
down and we talk, we engage with each other. We talk to
each other. It makes a difference. You capture somebody”s
heart. You don"t capture them just by through a computer
game.

Now, I do have a blog that 1 have set up with all
of the information iIs out there for free on our program.

But that is different. That is a resource. That is not
about helping our kids. It"s not about helping people.

Have you got -- I"m sure everybody here in the audience has
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gone to a high school basketball game. And you know how
you"re cheering your team on and you just feel that
excitement? Everybody remember that? Okay. Well, you go
to the came, you feel that excitement. We need that
excitement here in Michigan. In Michigan today when we talk
to people, it doesn"t matter where you®"re at, when you talk
to people that excitement is not there. People are just not
there.

Well, the Michican program, this program is about
bringing excitement back. 1t"s about bringing passion back.
It"s about bringing enthusiasm back. It"s about bringing
relationships back. And what | have today is a program that
we can implement, each one of us. Each one of us can make a
choice today to implement this. This is a program that you
can implement today in your own heart. And what it is is
it"s a program to make a choice. 1It"s a program to make a
choice about your attitude. What is your attitude? When we
make a choice about our attitude, it"s free. It doesn"t
cost us anything. But we gather the momentum. We gather
the excitement. We build that team spirit. And we end up
with excitement. When we speak positive words into a
student"s heart -- and we*ve heard all sorts of stories
tonight about speaking positive words, about how every one
of these alternative schools work because they"re small and

they"re involved with kids. And it"s all about creating
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that excitement. So 1T we speak life into things through
our positive words, we can make a difference.

One of the things that people said to me, "Okay.
Well, if you come talk to them, they®"re going to want to
know how we can implement it. What can we do right now?

How can we implement this?" |I"m bringing you this as a
business owner, something that is free. Free. But we can
implement this. Each one of us makes a choice. Each one of
our educators, each one of our administrators, we make a
choice every day when we get up to have a positive attitude.
We make a choice. Do we want to look at things positively
or negatively?

When you catch the spirit and you start talking
positive, things change. Just think about that basketball
game. You know that basketball game and you remember how
things changed. Well, that"s what we can do with Michican
today. And so I°d really like to thank you for allowing us
the time here today. Excuse me. [I"m real passionate about
this, so | sometimes get ahead of myself. But I°d really
like to thank you and 1°d like to give each of you the start
of this program. We"re creating something we call a
positive pass, which goes right along with school. You need
a pass to do this, pass to go to the bathroom, pass to do --
go to whatever. And 1°d like to give you guys one of the

positive passes for being here today and looking at what we
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can do for children.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you for coming today.

MR. PRATT: AIl right. While Jan is doing that,
just one quick thing. Anybody else who -- I*ve got Jack
Rotman, Shari Cunningham, Teri Metros, Jeanine Glencer
Sammon, Karen Beauregard and Jay Stark -- you"re going to
have to forgive me. |1 can"t read it -- and Sherri Dee. |ITF
anybody else in the room wants to fill out a card and speak,
make sure you get one and we"ll get you on the list. Next
up we have Jack Rotman.

MR. ROTMAN: Hi. 1"m Jack Rotman. | teach math
at Lansing Community College, so I was listening to all of
those math comments. Thanks guys. There"s two parts to my
comments. One is professional, so it"s easier. And one is
personal, so it"s a bit tough.

The professional is two concepts from different
fields that you might find helpful. One is from
anthropology. 1It"s called the default trajectory where in
certain families and communities people assume that these
things are going to happen, so they tend to, like dropping
out of school. And that®"s not easy to fix. The other is a
concept called critical race theory, which asserts that
there®s an element of racism alive within our institutions
that causes things to happen like segregated schools that

are coming back now. That you can do something about by --
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not hearing? Okay. The second thing was critical race
theory, which is a sociological thing. It asserts that
racism is alive and well in our institutions, not just in
people, In our institutions. That is alive and causing
re-segregation of our schools, especially high schools. And
the reason for that recently is schools of choice. From
that standpoint, schools of choice is a racist theory and
should have no existence. So hopefully those two things are
clear. That"s the easy part for me to talk about.

The second is personal. | have two children. One
is what you would call a low maintenance student. She was
born with a textbook in her hand. No problems academically.
The second one is a high maintenance student; didn"t go so
well. By the time she was in seventh grade, the schools had
labeled her already and given up on her. So when people
said earlier ninth grade is when it happens, it happens
before then, at least for students with different needs.

And there"s several elements to that, why schools
were not a good match for her. One is there was talk about
bullying earlier. 1If you generalize that to verbal
violence, that was certainly an issue. People get picked
on, whether they get bullied or not, that has an impact.
There are people with different learning needs that teachers
need more time with and often more training to help. And

some teachers have a hard time -- since teachers have a hard
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time helping them occasionally. And all this wouldn®t have
happened if we had not taught that child to be a
well-behaved person. If she had been violent or aggressive
herself, she would have gotten more attention. And it"s
kind of an ironic twist that a well-behaved child with
special needs does not get the attention that a misbehaving
child would have gotten.

This child ended up dropping out of school and
going to the Michigan Youth Challenge Academy, which is a
perfect place for a lot of people. Because iIf you don"t get
your homework done, there"s a sergeant waiting in the
hallway who"s going to talk to you about why you didn"t get
your homework done. It really helps with a lot of problems,
especially if there®s motivation issues, which is the case
for this child.

So 1 don*t have any solutions for that except to
point out that a lot of things get missed in schools, and
it"s not a simple question of finding a best program to help
a student like mine. | think that®"s all I"ve got to say
about it. Any questions?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Next we have Shari Cunningham.

MS. CUNNINGHAM: Hello. Hi. My name is Shari
Cunningham. First, I"m not from Michigan. 1"m from New

Jersey. And I just so happened to be walking by and I saw
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this and got kind of nosy and came down.

After | started listening, education Is a passion
to me because 1°ve always wanted to do well. 1 come from an
island background, two island parents that came to this
country so that I could have the opportunities that they
didn®"t have. So from when you®re young you“"re implemented
that -- from when you®"re young it"s implemented in an island
background that education is number one. Even when you go
to a family barbecue, they®re not asking, ""Oh, how are you?"
The first question is, "How is school?” So to me it"s
always been number one.

I noticed that with a lot of high school students
as well as myself in some subjects you®"ll do better and some
subjects you"re no matter how hard you try is you“"re barely
cutting it right there. And for me one of those subjects
that I had a problem with was math. | could write you an
essay with my eyes closed. 1 can create a web page, not too
many problems. 1 can tinker, I can do things, 1 could
figure it out. But math 1 always had a problem with.

I went to my Algebra I teacher and 1"m, like, "I
come after school, I ask for extra help, 1 do extra just to
make up iIn the grades that I"m not getting in the test
scores. What else can I do?" Because a C is not cutting it
when colleges are looking at you. They want to know why

you"re getting these grades. The teacher told me, "Well, 1
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see that you®re working hard, and I just don®"t know what
else we can do with you. Maybe you®"re just not college
material . To hear that is like, "Are you kidding me?" You
know, to me it was -- at some point you need this
encouragement. And when you"re not getting it from a
teacher, it"s you have two choices. Either you can become
disencouraged (sic) and just fall by the wayside and wade
through high school and maybe you go to college or maybe you
don"t, or you can say, "You know what? Even if I"m not
college material, 1™m going to make myself college

material."

And for me 1 noticed that, if you"re not a strong

individual in yourself, then you tend to fall by the
wayside. |IFf you don"t have that support from the family,
you tend to fall by the waysides. | noticed just being here
less than a year that a lot of these high school students,
they go through that cycle where their parent is just
cutting it. And it"s, like, "It"s not that big of a deal.
The standards are low, so why don"t" -- "as long as |
graduate, i1t doesn"t matter it | made a D. It"s passing.”
And for me, 1 didn*"t want that for myself. So I said,
"Okay. Well, if I"m not college material, I1"m going to make
myself college material.” And 1 got into college, and 1
excelled and 1 did well. Math just was not my strong point.

And I found out in college that history and writing and
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reading was.

And my niece is now struggling with the same topic
of math. And she wasn"t as strong an individual as I am to
say that, "Okay. Even if I can"t get it, I"m going to get
It.” She seemed to be one of those students that, if she
doesn"t have that encouragement, it"l1l just push her over
the edge. And she"s now struggling and she®"s in her junior
year. And she®s a smart girl. She was skipped twice. It"s
just the math is just giving her a problem. And she's,
like, "Well, 1 don"t know, Auntie Shari. 1 don"t know what
I"m going to do. [I"m not doing too well in this math class
and the teachers don"t seem to care. As long as you come
and you"re quiet, they"ll pass you because they have these
large classrooms.™

And she said to me after | spoke to her and I™m,
like, "Look, I wasn"t good at math and 1 made it to college.
You can do it, too.”™ And 1 just noticed that if they don"t
have that encouragement and they"re not good at something or
you"re telling them that, "If you don"t pass this, this and
this, you"re not good enough and you won"t get that
diploma,™ 1f they don"t get it, they"re just going to fall
by the wayside. And 1 think that"s another reason why a lot
of kids are dropouts. "If I don"t meet the criteria, then
why even bother? 1°"m not good at math and you say | have to

pass Algebra 11 to graduate, then, 1 may as well just go
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start looking for a job, because 1 know I can"t make it."
And 1T they don"t get it in school and they know they“re not
good at it, what are they going to do? Thank you for your
time.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

MR. PRATT: Next we have Teri Metros.

MS. METROS: Hi. My name is Teri Metros. 1 think
I"m the first and probably the only social worker that®s
going to speak here today. 1 work in the Eaton County
schools, and 1*m not going to say which ones, because some
of the things I say 1°d just as soon not have you pin me
down anywhere.

I work the secondary level. 1 have a 7-12
building in a small rural community. 1 also have a high
school in sort of a mid size community. And I"ve been
writing an imaginary letter to the editor for the three
years I"ve been in this job trying to figure out who I could
tell so they could see what | see every day with the Kids
that 1 work with.

As a school social worker I work with special
education students. And these students all have learning
disabilities or emotional disabilities. Before I got this
Jjob as a school social worker I was In prevention out in
Eaton County. Of course, | lost my job in prevention

because we couldn®t prove that we prevented anything, so
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finally the money dried up. And we didn"t have the data,
because we are a data-driven group now and a data-driven
world, didn®t have the data to prove that we had provided
anything.

So when they were downsizing me because there was
no prevention money, | went back as a social worker. And I
got my school social work certification, and it was the best
thing that ever happened to me because I now have a job that
was probably the one that | was meant to have. What | see
every day in my work as a school social worker are really,
really wonderful kids. And when Jennifer Granholm, bless
her heart, came out and said iIn order to graduate you now
have to have four years of math, four years of science and
four years of whatever else, 1 had three of my kids who
aren"t very great students but did have a Newspaper in

Education program in their schools and saw the headlines.

They come in and said, "What the heck™ -- and they didn"t
use that good language -- "is that? That means I"m not
going to graduate. | can"t read very well. 1 work. | work

hard. They don"t value us, do they?" And | sat back in my

chair and I said, "It"s tough to tell sometimes, isn"t it?"
These are good kids that work hard. 1°m watching

my schools now scramble to try to make sense of the new

rules. There hasn"t been a whole lot of direction. We

can"t accommodate anymore. We can"t modify and still give
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them a diploma. None of these kids are going to go knock on
the door at University of Michigan and try to pretend that
they have the same diploma that the kids from some of our
wealthier schools have that we know they got the grade
point, they did the community service, all that great stuff.
They"re not going to try to do that.

What 1 do see every day are incredibly damaged
kids. They are damaged by many different things. Some were
damaged at the age of 2, some were damaged before birth,
some were damaged when they ate the lead chips, some were
damaged at some point or other as young people, sexual
abuse, all kinds of different things. They"re still good
human beings and they"re still valuable human beings. But
we"re saying to them because of their disabilities, how ever
they got them -- 1 don"t know iIf you folks know Maslow"s
hierarchy of needs or not, and I haven®t memorized it, but
you“ve got to have a roof over your head, you"ve got to know
you"re going to have food in order to get up and go and
start your day and say, "1"m going to do the things people
ask me to do today."

My kids don"t always have that, and some of them
haven*t had it for years. And, you know, I could go on for
hours about the different scenarios, the different scenes,
the different personal stories of these kids, you know.

They"re heart wrenching. Some of them are coming out
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amazingly well and they have that resiliency that 1 can"t
explain to you. 1 don"t know why they®"re doing okay.
They"ve got 12 people living in their house. In my area, a
lot of the parents don"t have jobs. The confluence of our
economy, of gas prices, inter-generational poverty in the
smaller area, people stay there forever. Education simply
isn"t a value.

These kids have no vision. They start out with no
vision and in ninth, eighth, seventh, sixth, twelfth grade,
they have no vision. They look at me and say, "Why should 1
stay iIn school?” They really don*t grasp -- I don"t know if
it"s hubris, 1 don"t know if it"s lack of intelligence. |
think it"s their culture. In that culture they have no
concept of the fact that a high school diploma is necessary.
One of my fantasies iIs -- the gentleman from the Civilian
Conservation Corps was talking about that. 1°ve got Kids
that would give anything at 15 or 16, 'Let me drop out of
school. Let me sit in a forest fire tower somewhere and
spot Fires. Let me be outdoors.” These kids, they may have
no other skill than hunting, but some of them are really,
really good at it. They can"t pass Algebra 11, but they
have all kinds of other skills. Hunting, shooting, they can
tell you the parts of a gun. They can tell me In great
detail all the different things that they have.

So with all these notes that 1 haven®"t been
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reading, | think you get my point. We"ve got damaged kids.
They have no vision. They are parentally impaired. Their
parents had no vision either. Sometimes they“"re second or
third generation having no vision. One of my jobs is to
write reports, decide if Kids are socially maladjusted or
emotionally impaired. 1 can"t tell anymore sometimes. I™"m
not supposed to qualify them as emotionally impaired if they
have familial issues that cause this. Well, I can"t -- 1
don"t have special education students with the possible
exception of two In two districts that I can think of off
the top of my head that don"t have families that have
massive problems. Is that why they"re special ed? 1"11

never know for sure.

So what am I asking you for, you know? 1 suggest
things like money, 1 suggest things like after school
programs. | know that a lot of the teen pregnancies that

are happening, lots of things are because there"s nothing

for these kids to do and there isn"t enough money. 1 would
like to have money to pay the teachers to stay after school

to help these kids. 1°d like a bus so I can transport them
home, because they all live out in rural areas and | can"t

get them home even 1Tt I kept them after school.

So that said, you know, if I could have that, 1°d

like the kids that are languishing that I"ve already lost

that just simply left because there was no reason to stay
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back. Parental mental illness is a huge problem. And 1
know you can"t do much about that.

IT there"s anything you can think of you can do
for parents to get parents more engaged -- and just quickly
to answer your question or some of your comments, yes, it
would help to reinstate some of the early childhood
programs. My intermediate did wonderful things and they got
defunded. We lost that. We need to start before ninth
grade, yes. ITf we lost them educationally, we"ve lost them
by third or fourth grade. So 1°ve also sat on substance
abuse and violence prevention committees on a number of
different things. And | hope that something comes of this
that we will all be able to put our hands around and say,
"There was a dropout forum, and there are less kids dropping
out now." Because of all the things I"ve sat on, | watch
year after year after year and nothing seems to get better.
And 1 hope one of these days things will. Thank you.

MS. SAMMON: Hello. My name is Jeanine. 1 came
here from the Grand Rapids area, from Comstock Park. Who
was that lady that just spoke? Where is she? 1 came today
with my girlfriend.

I had originally come with the positive
reinforcements in the school. 1 had worked -- volunteered
and worked for the school at Comstock Park for many years.

I was a stay-at-home mom of Ffive boys, enjoyed working with
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all the children. And 1 know the benefits of just simple
loving those kids, regardless of color. When you just look
at their hearts and you see the need, It just makes it a
heck of a lot easier to help them find their way, 1 think.

But 1°m here today because I"m very much concerned
about the alternative schools. 1 don"t really know too much
about it. But like those kids who had come to this
counselor and said, "Well, now what,” 1 felt the same way.
I"m not here to label anyone, but I am here to find out what
can I do? And who®s making the decisions on if those
children get that money, and can 1 have their names?

MS. SALTERS: Well, 1 wouldn®"t pass up an
opportunity to answer that for anything in the world. Okay.

MS. SAMMON: Thank you very much, because I think
that"s where we need to start; right?

MS. SALTERS: You need to look to your
legislators. Because all policy around education is made
with our state legislature and our national legislature.

All funds for supporting schools come through state, through
decisions made by your state legislators. Those are the
people you need to make sure you know and that you talk to.

MS. SAMMON: And when are they making this
decision on the alternative school funding, the alternative
schools?

MS. SALTERS: Well, as such, they"re not making a
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decision on the alternative funding for schools. What
they"re making a decision on is the general funding for
schools.

MS. SAMMON: Schools, period?

MS. SALTERS: Schools, period. And but it takes
more, as you have heard here, more resources for those
alternative programs. And as we increase the requirements
around graduation, then we are diverting some of the monies
that was originally slated for alternative programs.

MS. SAMMON: Okay. You know, it"s interesting
too, because 1 find that, like, with talking about the new
math quotas and all this and that, | think in all good
intention when things are going awry in any business, 1"ve
found even In my home as 1™"m trying to manage my family, and
something happens that"s just not quite right and it"s
gotten us off track, 1 tend to get, "Oh, well, that"s going
to get my attention real quick and I"m going to put the law
down and we"re going to fix that real fast'; right? But
ultimately what ends up happening is we make the rules
harder and frustrate everybody a heck of a lot more where
had 1 just cooled my jets a little bit, took the time to
investigate and maybe allow the children a little bit of
their input and humbled myself a little bit, | think 1*d get

a lot further.

So hopefully with this one of the things I find is
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I try to keep my opinions down even though I"m very
opinionated. 1 find that usually I"m wrong. And that
asking more questions usually helps out more than me
stepping forward and thinking I know it all. 1 do hope that
these schools do get what they need.

Out of my Ffive boys, | do have one that is
alternative ed. He desperately needed it. Those other
children, they do great. They"re able to fit into that
mold. They"re president of student council, they"re a jock
on the football team, you know. They"re all leaders.

Robbie is a leader as well, but he"s got a lot of pain
attached to that from different situations. And had 1 not
had -- God bless you and all of you -- my heart -- had I not
had Miss Joan, had I not had Mr. Kim, had I not had all
those precious souls that when 1°m going, ""Oh, my gosh,
what*s happening? What"s wrong with my child,”™ I would not
have gotten through, because 1 didn®"t know what the heck to
do. I had -- nothing prepared me for that.

So | apologize for taking up so much time, but
it"s truly well spent, because I am going to investigate
this. I1"m not the smartest woman, but I know that if we
have enough hearts like we have here today that care -- this
is encouraging. This is encouraging that all of you are
sitting here and you care to take the time. | really got

scared when 1 seen that article in the Grand Rapids Press on
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the front page. |[1"ve got to tell you. So hopefully
together we can make a difference and we can make sure these
legislatures do their job.

And then in the meantime, just one last thing
please -- | know you want to cut me off probably -- okay.
What did 1 do with that note? 1 gave you a note to hold.
Did 1? Oh, please. Come on. | chased after that note.
It°s just a little folded up paper, not my tissue. |1
apologize. Bear with me. A young girl took the time to
write a note for me to bring to share with all of you, and
it 1s just absolutely so precious. Come on, Donna. Did 1
set it back in my purse? Oh, here it is. | apologize. 1
have it. Typical of me. Thank you very much.

I*m now working full time because unfortunately 1
went through a divorce, so | don"t get as much time to spend
with the children as I used to. However, they are so near
and dear to my heart and, when I walk into the school you-"d
think 1 was a princess of some sort. God bless those
children.

This is from a young girl named Shannon. She"s a
fifth grader. 1 know her mother personally. Shannon had
been her one out of the four didn®"t know what was going on
with little Miss Shannon. All of a sudden Shannon had
something miraculous happen to her this year. And the

mother"s, like, "Who are you and what have you done with my
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daughter?” And this is a very positive thing. So Shannon
decided to share her story with me. And it says,

"From your friendly fifth grader, Shannon. 1"m a
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fifth grader at Pine Island Elementary. Many Kkids come
to school all bummed out and want school to be over. |1
love school. I know I"m tired in the morning and 1
don"t want to go to school. But when I get there, my
teacher, Miss Calendar (phonetic)'™ -- she"s

beautiful -- "makes me feel happy that 1 came. Here
are some reasons why Miss Calendar makes me happy to be
at school. Miss Calendar likes to be sarcastic and
funny. If I don"t come to school, 1 feel like 1 would
be missing out on something. She gives less homework
when we"re loaded with homework. Miss Calendar has a
wonderful way with words, and that helps a ton. Math
has always been a tough subject for me since second
grade. Miss Calendar takes the time to help me
understand it better. Miss Calendar is always there if
you have a big problem. |1 would love to write more,
but 1°ve got to get to school and learn. Remember,
your teacher is not boring. They®"re not" -- "remember,
your teacher is not boring. They are trying their best

to make school a fun and safe place for you.™

So 1 think that our teachers are just so very important.

And if any of you are in here today, | just want to say
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thank you. And thank you for your time.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you so much.

MR. PRATT: AIl right. Next we have Karen
Beauregard and Jay Stark Dykema.

MS. BEAUREGARD: Thank you. 1"m Karen, and this
is Jay. 1°m the director of the Dispute Resolution Center
of Central Michigan. And, Jay?

MR. DYKEMA: Yeah. My name is Jay Stark Dykema.
I work locally with Community Mental Health with kids with
severe emotional and behavioral problems.

MS. BEAUREGARD: And together we work in the
Lansing School District restorative justice program. And
we"ve heard a lot here about student alienation being a
major factor that contributes to dropout, and we"ve heard
from many people about what some of the factors are that
contribute to that alienation. But one of the factors that
we haven"t heard about het that we think plays a very large
part are the traditional disciplinary practices of our
school systems.

And we know that students, especially in middle
school and early high school, engage in lots of kinds of
misconduct and experimental behaviors. And 1 want to make
sure | get this right. And for many of those students, the
classic response for misconduct is suspension from school.

And then they come back after their suspension either pretty
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much as they were when they left or perhaps a bit angry
because they thought the process was unfair or that other
people should have been suspended too, or any number of
reasons.

The interventions that we provide are called
restorative justice interventions. And what they do,
they"re an alternative to or they can be used to augment
traditional disciplinary processes. But the restorative
practices bring together the offending student, the one who
engaged in the misconduct with all of the people that they
impacted, all of the people that were harmed by some way by
this student®s behavior. And together with a very skilled
and scripted facilitator and process they look at three
things. Okay. What happened here? Who was harmed and how
were they harmed? And what needs to happen to repair that
harm, and who is responsible for doing that?

And so in that process not only is the little
misconduct, the personal held totally accountable for their
behavior to the people that they harm, but they have an
opportunity to repair it. And they have an opportunity in
that process to restore and repair their relationships that
got damaged in the process. And what we find out is that
this process, it should come as no surprise, it actually
strengthens the student®s bond with the school and with the

other people that they had been alienated from because of
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their behavior. And they learn an effective conflict
resolution process, which most kids don"t have opportunities
to learn. 1t"s not part of the class structure for the most
part through middle school.

So do we want to say what we"re asking for at the
end?

MR. DYKEMA: Yeah. Let me just say a little bit
about what we"ve accomplished in the Lansing School
District. We"ve been active in a number of middle schools
and high schools for the last three years. And we"ve
resolved hundreds of cases of students being in conflict
with one another or getting in trouble in school. And we
have saved in the Lansing School District somewhere between
1500 and 2,000 suspension days that students otherwise would
have been out of school had it not been for the restorative
jJustice process. We"ve saved I think over 15 Kkids from
getting expelled, including year-end kind of suspensions.
We"ve saved around a dozen kids from going to juvenile court
and having charges pressed against them for their misconduct
in the school. So we"re helping to keep kids out of
Jjuvenile court and off the streets and keeping them 1in
school .

Our outcome measures indicate that there®s a very
high percentage of the people who participate are satisfied

with the process, over 95 percent of the students and also
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parents and other adult supports are satisfied with the
process. Our students report learning new skills, conflict
resolution skills that they then use later to resolve
subsequent conflicts. So what we"re finding is that we"re
teaching them skills that they use later on with their next
friend that they get in trouble with. And that helps them
minimize future conflicts and stay in school. Over 90 --
around 90 percent of our students who participate in the
process report that kind of outcome.

So 1 think where we"re going with this is we think
we have something that can help kids stay in school and
maintain that attachment that"s crucial to prevent dropout
later on, particularly it we can focus on the middle school
years and maybe ninth grade.

I think what we would like to see is have it
written into Michigan public policy in the Department of
Education and also legislatively too as well that
restorative justice be offered or be promoted as an option
in addition to other disciplinary measures; that restorative
jJustice be considered as an option for students who get in
trouble in school. Anything else, Karen?

MS. BEAUREGARD: Just one last thing. Our
programs have been primarily funded and supported by Capitol
Area United Way, the Capitol Regional Community Foundation,

and more recently because they®"ve seen now in this -- are we
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in the fourth year, I think? -- of our project, the Lansing
School District has seen the results over time of these
processes and they have now begun to also financially

support it and to integrate it systemwide. And the parents

love it.

MR. PRATT: Thank you. All right. Two more to
go. I have fTirst Sherri Dee and then 1 have Theresa Kruger.
Okay .

MS. DEE: Hi. My name is Sherri Dee. 1 came
today to listen, but 1 can™t sit down and not say anything.
I am so encouraged by all the people that are here and just
how many people give of their time freely. There was the
lady earlier who said that, you know, she volunteered her
time and gave her own money for the project that was in her
school district. That was so encouraging to me.

Maybe a little bit about me, I have five children.
My oldest is 20. 1 graduated him home schooling him. My
next oldest just graduated summa cum laude from Lowell High
School. So I"ve had experience home schooling my children,
I1"ve had experience with public schools, I"ve had experience
with charter schools. And 1°ve had experience with five
different personalities with my own children. And what I
know about my own kids is that my daughter who just
graduated summa cum laude got irritated with a teacher

because a teacher said to her when she asked why she got an
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A- and the attitude of the teacher was, "Oh, you®"re one of
those AP students, aren®t you?"” And I could not believe
that a teacher would say that as opposed to encouraging, you
know. And my daughter just wondered how do 1 do better?

She wanted to achieve more. So that®"s her. |1 never had to
say, "Go do this," because she just always did it. She"s an
overachiever.

I have an 1l-year-old who is the greatest kid in
the world, but I will never expect him to get straight A"s
in school because he doesn®"t fit into that mold. He iIs very
intelligent and he works great with his hands, and he tries
really, really hard. And he does well in math and, you
know, but he had speech impediment when he was younger so he
didn"t read as early because he wouldn®"t -- he couldn®"t say
the letters. And so he had a little bit of a problem when
he went to school, and they helped him with his reading, and
he"s still a little bit behind.

But what 1™"m noticing about what I"ve heard all
these kids say to you and what 1°ve heard a lot of these
teachers say to you is that all these kids are gifted
differently and we put labels on them and we say, "‘Here, you
need" -- "this is a rectangle, and 1 want you to fit into
this rectangle.” And we have kids who are squares and
circles and diamonds and triangles. And when you start them

even In an early age and they can"t fit into your rectangle,



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

107

they get really frustrated and they think, "1"m not as good
as this person. 1°m stupid. | can"t do this."

And so by the time they“re in ninth grade, we had
somebody say, you know, we have our 90 percent dropout rate
by the time they"re in ninth grade. By the time they"re in
ninth grade, if they are in ninth grade -- 1 have a ninth
grader, or she"s going to be in ninth grade. I1f she thought
that she were stupid and she didn"t measure up to her
friends, that would devastate her. And so by the time
they"re in ninth grade, if she thinks these low self-esteem
things of herself and she just can®"t make it and what"s the
sense in trying, and if her parents or their parents live in
a situation where, you know, it"s okay for them to drop out,
then that"s what they®"re going to do. But if we give them
opportunities, we see all these alternative schools and
they"re doing great.

And 1 know, you know -- 1 think that Kent skills
(phonetic) is an incredible thing. Whenever they were
deciding on the education requirements, 1 went to all those
meetings or some of those town hall meetings, and I
understand why the legislature felt like they needed to do
something. 1 mean, you know, it"s like you said, we feel
like we need to do something. So let"s do it and we"ll fix
it. But that didn"t fix it. 1It"s going to discourage a lot

of kids. And so one of the concerns was for Kent skills. 1
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heard kids get up and speak about how Kent skills -- 1 heard
a kid who broke my heart. He was homeless. 1 mean, he
lived by himself. He didn"t live with his teachers -- or

his parents anymore. And Kent skills have given him the
skills to be able to have a job and support himself. And if
he wasn"t able to take those classes, then he would have
been on the streets.

And so when I was growing up, and I grew up in
Pennsylvania, so I know it"s not Michigan. But it made a
lot of sense to me. The high school that 1 grew up in we
had a college track and we had a business track and we had a
vo-tech -- we called it vo-tech -- a vo-tech track, and we
had an agricultural track, because 1 lived in the country.
And so, you know, Future Farmers of America. And you got to
pick, you know. If you were in the college track, these
were the classes that you took. And so I don"t understand
why the legislature can"t say, "You know what? If you"re
college-bound, you need" -- '"this is great. This is what
you need to graduate. You need to at least reach these
minimums."

And 1 know that we live in a higher tech society,
but 1 don"t think that any of those computer technicians
need Algebra Il In order to be a computer technician. They
need to learn some computer skills, you know. My 9-year-old

can do more on a computer than I can. So I just think that



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

109

we need to look at the kids and we need to think about the
fact that they"re all gifted differently. And maybe one of
the ways that we can do it from the time that they"re an
early age. | have a book that talks about the different
learning styles that kids are. And, you know, in each
elementary school there®s, like, two third grades or three
third grades or whatever.

Maybe what we could do is look at -- okay —-- if
you learn visually, then all those are in this third grade
classroom. And if you learn, you know, with your hands, you
know, then all those Kkids are in this third grade classroom.
And allow those kids -- they can learn math skills. But if
you can teach them the way that they can learn, they can do
a whole lot better. And then if you can add the Michican
idea where they"re just getting positive reinforcement every
day, and you guys are doing such a great job instead of them

feeling like, "l just can"t get this,”™ because, iIf you start
that out, I mean -- and it"s just human nature.

My mom, who was 75 years old when she passed away
this year, was in the second grade and was -- when she moved
from one school to another and they kept her in the second
grade, she always felt stupid and she never graduated from
high school. She quit when she was In the eighth grade

because she said, "l just" -- and she told me all her life,

"I"m so glad you"re so smart, because 1"m so stupid.” And
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she wasn®"t. She was a brilliant woman.

So 1 just think that we need to think about those
kind of things. And I know you®"re trying -- but what 1
woulld encourage all of you to do, and I would just wish 1|
could tell everybody, get in touch with your legislators,
because it is important. They will listen to you. They do.
I know it"s frustrating. |1 know. But if everybody does it,
if everybody talks to them, because they only can -- they
only listen to the people that they hear from. So if
everybody gets in touch with them, 1 just would so much
encourage you to do that. Just talk to them and give them
your points of view. So thanks.

MR. PRATT: Okay. Last one, Theresa Kruger.

MS. KRUGER: Thank you so much for having this go
"til 7:00 so I didn"t have to take time off of work today.
And 1711 try not to get that time"s up sign. My name is
Theresa Kruger, and my daughter has just completed the tenth
grade at Holt High School. [I™"m here this evening to express
my concerns with the new graduation requirements set forth
by the State of Michigan.

Before the fifth grade, my daughter has always had
trouble with math skills. When she entered the fTifth grade
at the Holt School, the system changed their math program.
So when she was supposed to be learning decimals and

fractures, they started introduction to algebra. Without
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this training of decimals and fractures, Elizabeth was not
able to understand the basic concepts to be able to
understand formulas pertaining to algebra. So by the time
she finished the eighth grade, her math skills were at near
failure rate. By the ninth grade she failed algebra. And
when asked about making up the class in summer school at a
cost to me the parent, 1 was told, "It"s okay. She can make
it up next year.” By now, the end of her tenth grade year,
she has failed algebra again because she didn"t understand
ninth grade. And when she went to algebra ten, she didn"t
get 1t.

Okay. When asked back when to have her tested
with possible problems with learning disabilities with math,
I was told, "Your daughter is lazy. She"s just not applying
herself.” 1"1l1 get to my daughter®s accomplishments in a
moment. But the small window of opportunity to fail any
class and still maintain the required credits to graduate
from a Michigan high school system, my daughter is at risk
to either drop out of school or graduate from high school at
the age of 20. 1°"m still working with the school district
to get some type of testing done to see where my daughter®s
skills are for math to determine iIf there is any kind of
learning disability that would cause her not to be able to
understand the concepts. But is this going to help?

Dropping out of school is not now nor never will

111
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be an option for my daughter. And it is difficult at best
for her to maintain the necessary grades to be able to meet
the state requirements for graduation. This is causing a
domino effect with scheduling her other classes and the
ability to meet these graduation requirements. 1 do not
want my child to be the guinea pig as stated at a recent
meeting with her high school counselor. When 1 asked what
the counselor meant about being a guinea pig, he stated that
the school tried to come up with a curriculum to be able to
aid the students, but i1t failed. And so now they~“re trying
to work on something to help the children coming in behind
her.

And 1 asked what about those children that are
struggling now? "1°m sorry. There®s nothing we can do."
Along with the trouble with algebra, she began failing her
other required courses. One of them is honors English. For
a child to fail algebra and she made honors English, she
failed. | was not advised until three weeks ago that my
daughter was not going to meet eligibility requirements for
graduation. | could have done something earlier in the
school year, but was not advised.

At present my daughter is going to be attending
summer school to assist with making up failed classes and
will attend it again next year. Holt School systems have

the trimester system. Summer school only gives you a half a
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credit. A trimester gives you 1.5. She will not meet
graduation requirements, thus causing her to attend night
school along with regular class. 1 know my daughter at the
age of 16 does not have the ability to pull a Ffull class
load during the day come home, do homework, go to school
from 6:00 to 10:00 and do homework again. |1 myself at the
age of 48 would not be able to hold a full-time job down, be
an effective parent and go to school full time. 1 can"t ask
that of my daughter, and 1 don"t think the state should
either.

I don"t want my daughter to be one of the failed
students, to be a dropout. | don"t want any child coming
behind her to be that. This is a true example of a child
being left behind. When I asked the counselor how many
children in this tenth grade class are struggling, he said
half the tenth grade class failed math.

Holt is a large school. 1It"s an affluent school,
like the one lady said, the schools with money. 1 don"t
have money. 1 just happen to live in a district where the
school does. 1It"s a great financial burden to me to put her
through -- 1 can"t pay for tutoring. | can"t get her the
help she needs.

Working with a psychologist In the Lansing area,
it"s been determined that with the failing grades and other

issues, my daughter feels that she is a complete failure at



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

114

everything and shut down and is now at risk of failing
classes she maintained an A and B. An example about my
daughter®s feelings, 1 would like to read a paragraph to
you. But before, I"m going to tell you her accomplishments.
In the Fifth grade they introduce music. My daughter picked
up a flute, could not play it; could not play a saxophone,
could not play a clarinet. But they gave her an oboe and
she got music. Oboe is the most difficult instrument to
play. Without the help of private classes, because 1
couldn®t afford it, my daughter was one of two tenth grade
students to make symphonic band and is still In symphonic
band. And in a two-week time period my daughter picked up
and learned the saxophone so she could be in marching band.
My daughter is accomplished. She is very smart. She fails
at math.
Now, to read her anthology to her honors English
class,
"Broken promises. 1 was always told to be my

best, excel at what I try. 1 won"t fail you, Mother.

111 do the work. 1 promise. Promise broken. 1711

always do my best, excel at what I try. 1 won"t fail

you, Father. [I1"11 do what I am told. 171l pass. |1

failed. 1 was always told to be my best, excel at what

I try. 1 won"t fail you, Brother. [1"11 do what I know

is best. 1711 learn from your mistakes. | never
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learned. | always aspired to be the best I can, do
what 1 can. 1 won"t fail myself. |I"1l pass this year
with at least a 2.9 average. 1711 turn in my work,
raise my hand, ask questions, always the resistant one
sitting at the back of the class, ignorance taking
hold."
That was her anthology for one year in honor English.
That"s what she wrote to her teacher. So as you can see,
this has affected my daughter, a student in the Michigan
high school system emotionally, and it will be a struggle
for her to be able to complete high school. And as her
parent, with all the love and support I can show her, 1 am
still proud of her no matter what the outcome of the system
that has failed her. It is my hope that the MEA and the
State of Michigan will work together with the school systems
to look at the higher standard requirements in the math and
sciences and reevaluate these for these children that are in
the bubble of the change where the early education was not
in place to prepare them for this type of requirement.

IT you don"t get one concept in math, you®"re not
going to get them all. And they want to put her in
trigonometry next year. Thank you again for your time. And
I appreciate it and | hope that this will do something to
help not only my daughter but all the children present in

school now and the ones coming in the future. Have a good



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

evening.

MR. PRATT: Thank you. Okay. |1 think at this
point 1 want to open it up to the panel to just kind of talk
about what you"ve heard today, the most important take away.
And we"l1l start down on the end here with Ron.

MR. KOEHLER: Well, with all due respect to the --
with all due respect to the adults in the room, 1 have to
say that the children really told us what the issues were
and what they needed. The children who responded to the
survey that the EA did, these partners did, and released
last week, they said that they needed a caring adult, that
they needed a relevant curriculum, one that gave them a
career focus so that they understood why they were learning.
The children here today told us that they needed some
direction, they needed people who cared about them and would
spend time with them, they needed a second chance sometimes,
they needed extra time. Mostly they need all of us to, as
has been suggested today, to speak with our legislators and
let them know that one size does not fit all and that all of
our children, as one of our adults said, has different --
have different gifts and we should nurture those. So thank
you for your time this evening.

MR. QUISENBERRY: 1 too want to thank
everyone who"s come and participated. Each one of these

hearings, four so far, have had a little different flavor to
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them, but there are some common themes. Ron"s reiterated
some things that you kind of hear. It"s around those R"s;
relationships and relevancy. And the rigor I think is
something that we really have got to solve. What does rigor
mean? How do we keep high standards and yet have something
that all kids can achieve iIn?

Ms. Kruger, thank you. 1 too appreciate the
personal stories that have come out. It does make things
relevant. 1 also want to speak, though, and say this isn"t
the legislature®s fault necessarily. As important as this
is to communicate to legislators, this is where this i1s all
headed, they need input and solutions. And this is a very
complex problem. 1 appreciate your question, you know.
What are we really trying to do here? If all we"ve done is
build some awareness amongst those that have attended these
hearings and supplied the legislature with a very
comprehensive holistic list of solutions and how this
should work, we"ve accomplished a tremendous amount. So I
too appreciate how this has come together. And both
remembering, we“ve heard some great ideas and solutions,
things that are working right here in Ingham County. And
yet we have to understand that, if all of this was common,
we wouldn®t be sitting here with a real problem on our
hands. So it really is an effort that"s very important to

all of us. And all these things as contradictory as they



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

118

may seem, are going to lead to improvements. So I
appreciate the efforts of all here, and look forward to the
next hearings.

MS. SALTERS: Well, certainly 1 want to thank you
for staying as long as you have stayed. Secondly, 1°d like
to thank the partners that have joined us in this effort,
because it is a community effort. None of us can do this by
ourselves. And I think the thing 1 take away from today is
the importance of realizing that everybody doesn®t fit in
the same box and that there needs to be flexibility.

By trade I"m a special education teacher, so 1
know that students all can learn, but they learn in
different ways and they learn in different lengths of time.
So we have to make sure that our education system provides
for all; our gifted on the high end and our gifted on the
other end. And if we do that, then we"re going to be able
to retain those students that we"re losing.

MR. KOGUT: I too would like to thank
everyone and giving me the opportunity to participate.
There"s really some heartwarming stories, you know. Really
what this reminds me of as a grassroots efforts and,
frankly, that"s the only thing that ever iIs successful
really iIs a grassroots, a swelling from down up. And that"s
what we"re talking about here. The things that 1 really

heard today is we do need to continue to have diverse,
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unique opportunities for kids. You have to have that whole
continuum. We have to provide a safe and secure environment
before learning can take place. We heard that. You don"t
learn 1T it"s not safe and secure first. We have to allow
for flexibility in scheduling, flexibility In graduation
rates. We"ve got to figure that out and the legislators has
to hear that It"s not one size, as you just heard, fits all.

We have to have immediate and ongoing
interventions, you know. If this child isn"t successful,
then how do we help that child, you know? And not wait, the
lady just said, until three weeks before the end of school
and she finds out her child®s unsuccessful. There"s got to
be immediate interventions. We have to figure out how do we
potentially maybe increase the dropout age. We heard that
asked. Maybe it does make sense. There"s some
challengeable sides, but we should at least have a dialogue
about that. 1Is it the right thing to raise the dropout age?
And last and 1 think the most important our schools need to
be student centered, not adult centered. Our schools are
adult centered. They"re run for adults, not for students.
That needs to change. Thank you.

MR. PRATT: With that, 1 think we"ll wrap up. 1
want to thank our panelists for being here today. 1 want to
thank all of you for coming. | think the real take away

message here, actually our panelists hit on it very nicely,
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the legislature can provide us tools, but it"s the
grassroots effort and the conversations of the whole
community recognizing that no one can do this alone, that"s
what®s going to solve this problem. That"s what"s going to
graduate more students from high school. So as we take this
testimony and bring it back here to Lansing to the
legislature this fall, we will hopefully create an
environment where we can get those tools. But keeping the
conversation going locally, coming out of this meeting and
continue to have this conversation amongst yourselves,
amongst your neighbors, amongst school employees and
everyone else in the community is critical to keeping the
momentum behind this effort.

With that, thank you all for coming. If you know
people who you think should add their voice to this
conversation, please ask them to go online to our website,
which Is mea.org/dropouts, and they can provide testimony
online that we will also provide to the legislature. With

that, thank you all very much, and have a safe drive home.

~0-0-0-
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ATTACHMENTS:

- Speaker Card Copies

- Written testimony from Michele M Allswede, Laura Wyble and
Robin Turner

- Information from Rebecca Bahar-Cook regarding Kalamazoo area
program on “Integrating Systems of Care, Positive Behavior
Supports, and Wraparound in Schools”

- New Hampshire dropout prevention study including anti-bullying info

- Mich I CAN Today information (ref. Jan Hall testimony)

- The Epicenter Project (ref. LeCorn and students testimony)

- The Michigan Online Learning Report (ref. MVU testimony)

- Truancy Education Mediation Program (ref. Hobbs testimony)

- Meridian High School: Creative Success DVD (available on request from

Doug Pratt, MEA, dpratt@mea.org)
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